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Wong, Jocelyn (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Categories: 

Peter Prows <pprows@briscoelaw.net> 
Monday, June 24, 2019 1 0:19 PM 
BOS Legislation, (BOS); smw@stevewilliamslaw.com; hestor@earthlink.net 
GIVNER, JON (CAT); STACY, KATE (CAT); JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT); Rahaim, John (CPC); Teague, Corey 
(CPC); Sanchez, Scott (CPC); Gibson, Lisa (CPC); Jain, Devyani (CPC); Navarrete, Joy (CPC); Lynch, Laura 
(CPC); Rodgers, AnMarie (CPC); Sider, Dan (CPC); Starr, Aaron (CPC); Forbes, Elaine (PRT); Quezada, 
Randolph (PRT); Quesada, Amy (PRT); Kositsky, Jeff (HOM); Schneider, Dylan (HOM); Stewart-Kahn, 

Abigail (HOM); Rosenberg, Julie (BOA); Cantara, Gary (BOA); Longaway, Alec (BOA); 80S-Supervisors; 
80S-Legislative Aides; Calvillo, Angela (BOS); Somera, Alisa (BOS) 

RE: PORT MEMO and APPELLANT SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Appeal of CEQA Exemption 
Determination - Proposed Seawall Lot 330 Project - Appeal Hearinq on June 25, 2019 
Find San Francisco Parking _ lmpark Lot Map Search.pdf; CCSF 04369S.pdf; Transfer Agreement 
dated Jan 24 1969.pdf; CCSFOSS001 -34.pdf; Transfer Agreement dated Jan 24 1969.pdf 

190611 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Thank you. 

Please find attached, for the record, the 1969 transfer agreement between the City and the State Lands Commission. 

Also attached are t wo documents relating to average parking demand and rates. If half of the parking from Seawall Lot 
330 is removed for this project, parking demand w ill exceed supply. 

Also attached are crime reports for the record showing an overall increase in crime in neighborhoods after other 
Navigation Centers went in. 

Photos taken for the record of persistent homelssness problems from outside other Navigation Centers are 
here: https://drive.google.com/open?id=1brkNiPPSeiTtUVgJwdKQKulytMk UKbT 

Thanks. 

From: BOS Legislation, (BOS) [mailto:bos.legislation@sfgov.org] 

Sent: Monday, June 24, 2019 9:09AM 
To: smw@stevewilliamslaw.com; Peter Prows <pprows@briscoelaw.net>; hestor@earthlink.net 

Cc: GIVNER, JON (CAT) <Jon.Givner@sfcityatty.org>; STACY, KATE (CAT) <Kate.Stacy@sfcityatty.org>; JENSEN, KRISTEN 
(CAT) <Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org>; Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org>; Teague, Corey (CPC) 
<corey.teague@sfgov.org>; Sanchez, Scott (CPC) <scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>; Gibson, Lisa (CPC) 
<lisa.gibson@sfgov.org>; Jain, Devyani (CPC) <devyani.jain@sfgov.org>; Navarrete, Joy (CPC) 
<joy.navarrete@sfgov.org>; Lynch, Laura (CPC) <laura. lynch@sfgov.org>; Rodgers, AnMarie (CPC) 
<anmarie.rodgers@sfgov.org>; Sider, Dan (CPC) <dan.sider@sfgov.org>; Starr, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.starr@sfgov.org>; 

Forbes, Elaine (PRT) <elaine.forbes@sfport.com>; Quezada, Randolph (PRT) <randolph.guezada@sfport.com>; Quesada, 
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Amy (PRT) <amy.quesada@sfport.com>; Kositsky, Jeff (HOM) <jeff.kositsky@sfgov.org>; Schneider, Dylan (HOM) 
<dylan.schneider@sfgov.org>; Stewart‐Kahn, Abigail (HOM) <abigail.stewart‐kahn@sfgov.org>; Rosenberg, Julie (BOA) 
<julie.rosenberg@sfgov.org>; Cantara, Gary (BOA) <gary.cantara@sfgov.org>; Longaway, Alec (BOA) 
<alec.longaway@sfgov.org>; BOS‐Supervisors <bos‐supervisors@sfgov.org>; BOS‐Legislative Aides <bos‐
legislative aides@sfgov.org>; Calvillo, Angela (BOS) <angela.calvillo@sfgov.org>; Somera, Alisa (BOS) 
<alisa.somera@sfgov.org>; BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org> 
Subject: PORT MEMO and APPELLANT SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Appeal of CEQA Exemption Determination ‐ 
Proposed Seawall Lot 330 Project ‐ Appeal Hearing on June 25, 2019 
  
Good morning, 
  
Please find linked below a memo received Friday afternoon by the Office of the Clerk of the Board from Port as well as 
supplemental information submitted by the appellant, Safe Embarcadero For All (SEFA) , regarding the appeal of the 
determination of categorical exemption from environmental review under CEQA for the proposed project at Seawall Lot 
330. Both items were received after compilation of, and is not included in, the hearing’s Agenda Packet for the June 25 
Board Meeting. It will, however, be a part of the final legislative history file. 
  
                Port Memo ‐ June 21, 2019 
               Appellant ‐ SEFA ‐ Supplemental Information ‐ June 23, 2019 
  
The hearing for this matter is scheduled for Tuesday’s 3:00 p.m. special order before the Board on June 25, 2019, at 
3:00 p.m.  
  
I invite you to review the entire matter on our Legislative Research Center by following the links below: 
  

Board of Supervisors File No. 190611 
  
  
Best regards, 
Jocelyn Wong 
San Francisco Board of Supervisors 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
T: 415.554.7702 | F: 415.554.5163  
jocelyn.wong@sfgov.org  |  www.sfbos.org  
  
  

 
    Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24‐hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 1998. 
  
Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and 
the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying 
information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the 
Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not 
redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information—including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a 
member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees—may appear on the Board of Supervisors' website or in other public documents that members 
of the public may inspect or copy. 
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     M    m      m  

 

PETER PROWS 
155 Sansome Street, Seventh Floor 
San Francisco, California 94104 
Direct: (415) 402-2708 Cell: (415) 994-8991 
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}'>ur.~l,l.::tnt to the p:rov;i.:::iom: of the Stlrt:.utcs of 1903, 

Ch<tpter 1333. th'l.n ar.rcc.~IOC!nt is: llloildC' Olld entered into in 

qmHir.l1I'Ilic:1tc this ~"'l:l..dny of , 19Gr, 

by nnd bCtl·:ccn the City and Cot.1nt 

nrun:td.p.'ll corportttion of the St.1tc or: C.1l:i.fornin, hcrC>innftcr 

t•cfcr~:cct to ns 11 thc C:i.t.y11 nn..cl th(: DiJ:~..:ctor o£ l~innncc~ of the 

Stnt.:.· of Cnlif:orn:l.n .1ct:i.n~ for .~nd on bohnlf: of the Stnte! of 

Cnliforn1.:~, mHl n::w:i.r.tC"d by thi.' SC'.t.:rc.•torry lor Agricul.ttn•c! 

nncl SC!l.~1.cc~ o£ tlw £tnt(~ of c~rJ.:tE'O)."rd.n .:mel the S!ln ln.·.:m.C:i.GCO 

I'ort Aur:hol·J.ty, .:m .1~<'ncy of the St~t(~ of. C:~lifornin, rv•r,or:in­

t:i on~ !ol.' th<.: f01."lll of the.:: liCl.'Ccn~cnt h:1v:i.n~ bcC'n concJ.udc•d by 

Octol•t:l• '--'·L-.!.2~ :i.n co:npli:tncl.! with the tcrnw o£ Sl.!ction 7.1 

of s:.<id ch.:lpt:cr. 

Pur:.:::u.1nt to the rrovi::ionc. of tlH.! St.nCnt:t•r. of 190$, 

Chnpt:C'r 13r3, the p:Irtic:o hereto ngrN!. liS loJ.lot·:s: 

I. TJHC: OJ~ TI~Ji~.~li 

•£he~ tilnC of tT.'.10$f:Cr 0£ the.• prO[)~r.ty described il\ 

Sc.:ct:i.r;.n (. o! the nfort·r.~:i.d St~ttut:C$ of: 1968, Cha.pC.t."'l: 1333~ 

hcrcin.:L!t(lh" 17c£cr~:cd t.:o r.c "the Act," ns set foX"th in Scct::Lnn 10 

of the Act i!> tv-hen the voters of the CJ.tr and County of San 

Francinco h:wc .:l.s-scntcd to the trnnsfcr under the t(.•).111!: ond 

con-.lltlon.r. spcci!iccl, and the results of the election hnvc 

b(~Cn ccrt:i.fiC'd to nccordinc to lm·l. Section 9 of the Act 

proviclc.•s, ho~~·cvcr, thnt ns cxprcs~ conditions to the. t:r:.1.nnfcr 

the City nnd County must D.Z:t:'Cc to specific conditions, all a.s 

more p.:ll"l:icul:n;_.ly fict: f:or.t:h in the Act:. One of snid con<lit:i.onr. 

:i.r. the! m!got;i.ntion l1nd nppl.~ov.'ll of thi:::; ogrccmcnt by both 

p::n:tic~~. 'l'hc Act :tlso require~ t:h.:tt: cct~ta:i.n chcrtcr .:trncnclmcnts 

be~ c·nnctctl ns conditionr:; of the trnn.sfcr. 1'hosc ch::n·tcr 

1. 
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amendments do not tol:e effect until approved by tho Logl.sl.~turc 

of the Stnte: of ?alifornia. mcctin& in rcculnr. session. The 

ncccssnry ehort:cr amendments hnvc been approved by the Uoard of 

Supervisors of the City nnd County of Snn Francisco ond will be 

on the ballot on November 5, l%8. 

On November 5, l%8, there >li.ll be submitted nlso 

to the voters n proposition to opprovc the transfer of the 

Jln4'bor of Sun Francisco fl'."om the Stntc of Cttlifornill. to t:he 

City and County of Son Frnncisco under the terms nnd conditions 

set forth in Stntutos of l9G8, Chnptcr 1333 nnd to assume by 

ngrccmcnt to indemnify, de fond, ttt'ld hold harmless the Stntc o:f 

C.nlifornin to.•:i.t:h rcn;ttt:d to .nll outstnndin& bonded indebtedness 

incurred by tho State of Colifornin for Snn Francisco llnrbor 

irnpt·ovcmcnttl .o.nd to n!1sumc the liabilities, oblieations and 

duties, of the San Fr:~ncisco Port Authority under all other 

outstnndins contracts, lcnr.cG~ franchises ~nd ngrccmcnts, nll 

no more p:~rticularly sot !orth in Ordinonce No. 273-68 adopted 

by the Board of Supervisors on the lOth cloy of September; l9GS, : 

approved by the Hayor on the l3th dny of Septombcr, 1968, 

In order to nvoid conflict nnd ombicuity and in the 

interest$ of the City nnd County of San Frnncisco :tnd th~ State 

o£ Cnlifornic'l, the pnrtics agree that the vote on the propositions 

set forth hereinabove "ill not be certified by the Registrar of 

Voters if fnvorablc in the required majorities unless or until 

the Lccislaturo of the Stnte of California is mcotin& in session 

so tho'lt: it r;~.sy t~Ct promptly on suc:h mc:tsurcf. In the event the 

vote is not fnvornble in tho required majorities in the election 

of November 5, 1968, the pnrtics will ~mend this agreement to 

provid~ n new dntc of trans!cr after su~h lntcr fnvornblc vote 

nnd transfer will not tnkc effect until this a.erecmcnt is nmcndcd. 

In the event, however, that the election is favorable in the 

required mtljoritios, the tt'nna!'cr will tnkc effect on th~ 7th 

dny o£ Feb~~ary, 1969, providin~'this ngrcemr.nt h~s been entered 

2. 
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into nnd 11pprovcd by the pnrt:ics, nnd p:~.·oviding there has bcc:n 

ttpprovnl of the charter amcndmcn.ts by the Lczisl:~tul.'C. If 

cithe:r of these p·rovisos hrw not been completed, the trnnsfct" will 

tnttc effect when both provisos arc completed. Tha time for tran!:fcr 

of funds shnll, for ncco1.11\tinn, pu1.·po~cs, be the dntc of trnnr-for 

set forth herein. 

3. 
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II. TRANSFF.l\ Or' PROPEl\'r'l 
i 

TRANSFER OF RFAL PROPERTY: 
. I . 

trnnsf~l:rcd undc;r the Act is the real 
I 

tion .nnd control[ of the San Fr.anc:iceo 

The rcnl property which is 

pt•opcorty under the j urisdic ... 

Port Authority as of the 

dn.tc of transfer:, sltbjcct to certain rostrictions nnd exceptions, 

nll ns more particularly so~ for~h in the Ace. · The real property 

so transferred lies within the perimeter description scit forth 

in llarbors and N.wigation Code section 1770 and those additional 

lando which ore the properties of the State of California set 

forth in Harbors and Navigation Code section 1772. In addition 

to the property inclLtdcd 1dthin the nf:or<•mcntioned code sections, 

there nrc spc~ific ac<!Uisitions as shwn in lloolc B 192, poe;e 

38l~, Recorder's office City and County of S::tn Francisco, 

rccoL"clcd November 13, l9G7. Within three years 1:rorn /,ugt)t-t 14, 

1968 • the cf!'cctivc dntc of the Act, the City nnd County of 

Snn Francisco nhnll nt the cost of the Harbor Con:mission of t:hc 

Cl.ty oncl Com>tY of: Snn Froneiseo hnvc the State Lands Commission 

survoy and monument the trnn~fcl:'red l:mds and rccol."d n. description 

ond plot thereof in the o!ficc of the Recorder of the City '·''d 

County. This requirement need not, ho\·Tcvcr. be complied witl'. 

unless or until the transfer takes effect. A mnp depicting 

the rc"-1 pt•opcrty trnns£crr~d is appended .hereto ns Exhibit "A" 

for the convenience of.the parties, except that said mnp docs 

not purport to shO\-l nll the p:topcrty within the perimeter 

description which is not included in the transfer, Some of 

the proporty within the perimeter is in Ol\"nC'rship other than 

the Stntc of California or is owned by or under the jurisdiction 

or control of the dop:~rt:mcnr:~ or .necncics set forth in Section 2 

of the Act. In addition, soid exhibit cannot accurately depict 

the rcnl proporty covered under Section 1772 untl.l the survey 

is completed by the StatCl L:mds Comruission. When the .n!'orcsnid 
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survey is completed the description colltnined therein will be 

deemed to be: .n port of thin nr;rcemcnt except thot either pnrty 

rcscrvc:s the tig'h't: to object to the description. If' nzrccmC;nt 

cnnnot be t·c.:r.chcd bet,·lccn the parties each party l."C$crvcs the 

rieht to hove the matter determined by o court or courts of 

competent jurisdiction. In thot event whc11 the finnl court's 

dctcnuinn tion is !in:: ll.y ccn'l.cludcd) thr~ t dctcr.m~.natJ,on "';.,ri).l 

become n part of this ngrccmcnt. 

PERSOlV''L Pl\OPER'rY Ol'HER l'HAN l!Ur;os: Under Section 2 

of the Act n.ll personal property ot1ncd or cOntrolled by the Stntc 

of Cnlifornia and used in connection with the opcrllt1.on nnd 

mnintcnoncc of the hnrbot• is trDnsfcrrcd pursunnt to the terms 

of the Act, l'hc pcrsonol property so tronsfcrrod is listed in 

the office of the Compt:rolle:l.~ of the S~n Francisco Port Authority 

on tnt index litit:i.ng called ''Dntn Proc:cssine; Doprccint::ion Listing." 

The St:ntc tal~ct. no responsibility for nny property which nto.y not 

be located .nt the time of tl.·nnsfcr,_ but so fnr .ns the State is 

ll..lUil:C:, nll of the prop~rty so listed is in IJSC !l.t'ld con be loc.oC<::d 

and :~.11 this property \o1ill be tr,"lnSferrcd pursuant t:o the terms 

of the Act. 

t'MNSl!ER OF '"UNDS: The funds •·hich ~<ill be tr.1nsferrcd 

from the Stncc to the City pursuant to the Act nrc presently 

on deposit with the State Treasurer of the State of California 

and accounted for in the office of the State Controller, Division 

of Acco•mtinc 1\ccords. 1'hosc funds consist of the follo~<i~>&: 

Snl'l. Franci:::eo Harbor Im?rovcmcnt Fund; Snn Francisco Sen Hall 

Fund No. 4; Snn FranciscO Sen H~ll Fund No. 5; H.nrbor Bonet 

Sinkin& Fund; lndia Bnsin Sinkine Fund; S.nn Francisco Sc:t H.:Jll 

Sinl<in& Fund No. 2; Son Francisco Sco !loll Sinl<!.nr; nmd No. 3; 

. Son Francisco Sen llol.l. Sinkl.ng Fund No. '•> and Spcciol Dcpos!.t. 

Honic~ :u:c prcsc~ntly clue those fundr. from the Surplus 

Monic~ Invcostmcnt Fund. At the time of the trnncfcr rnonicr. in 

the Surplus Honics T.nvc:r.trncnt Fund from c:.o..ch o! the above funds . ' 
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will be trllnt:fcrrcd .:ts of the d.:1tc of transfer in o:~.ccordnncc 

with the provisions of Sccti.on I of thin n~rccmcnt, nnd interest 

on those ntonics will be credited by the Stntc in the s:Jmc mrnincr 

ttnd to the snmc extent ,:,s it presently credits intcrcr.c to the 

deposits o! the flmd!: '11hcm the San Francisco Port Authority 

rcqLtcsts crnncfcr bnc:lt to the funds. Sttn Francisco Harbor 

Improvcmcnc Fund is the fund provided for in H:ll."bors Llnd 

Nnviention Code section l706. Son Frnneisco Sen Hnll Fund No. 4 

is the con~t:t·m~t:ion fund nuthor:t.zcd by Chapter 835 of the Stntutcs 

of 1929. San 1rrnncisco Sc.'l. Wall Fund No. 5 is the eot'l.strLJction 

fund cn,tthorizcd by H::~.rbors nnd Nuviencion Code scctiOI'l 3902. 

11m:bor nond Sit\kins Fund is the fund for redemption of bondf> 

nntl p:tymcnt of interest purr.unnt to Uorhors and Nav:S.g:ntion Code 

section 3902, India. Bn.sin Sinkinc Fund is the fund fo,: the 

redemption of bomlf> llnd payment of interest pursuant to Stntutcs 

of 1.909, Chnpter. 1,07. Son Franeioco Sen Wall Sinl,inc Fund llo. 2 

is the fund foJ: redemption o£ bonds nnd payment of interest 

pm:su.nnt to Stntutcs of 1909, Chnptcr 320. S:m Francisco Sc.1 

\<.'nll Sinking Fund No. 3 is the fund for redemption of bonds :md 

p:~.ymcnt of interest pur.su.nnt to statutes of 1913, Chapter 602. 

Snn Francisco Sinkine Fund No. 4 is the fund !'or redemption of 

bon?s .ond payment: of interest pur~autnt to Stotutcs of 1929, 

Chnptcr S35. The fund designated Special Deposit iS a trust fund 

in which monies l<hich arc not propercy o£ the State arc deposited 

prior to r<fund or repayment to other persons, Such fund will 

be tnken by the City subject t:o r~payn1cnr: to the true owners. 

ln the cvcn.,t th~ funds :trt> not rcpo:ld And vest in the City, such 

f\w1ds sht1ll: be credited by the City to the San Francisco Hnrbor 

lmp,·ovcmcnt Fund. Upon the trnnsfc:r of these fund:: from the 

State to the City, the City shnll set up funds ·identical with 

the f:unds hcrcinobovc decienntcd. Dcpocit~ sh~ll be mndc into 

these funds 'in the snmc manner and to the: snme extent as deposits 

llrC pt·cscntly made nnd the funds shnll be used for the st~mc pur .. 
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poses ns the funds nrc used by tho Stntc. This shnll not pre­

clude the City from setting up addit:iOi'lnl funds "~>then .nnd if that 

becomes ncccssnry)· nor. sh.:tll it preclude th~ City !'rom setting 

up lldditionnl accounts in. the funds ,.,hen and if such neeounts 

become nccc~s.:1ry. '!he ndditiol''l.~l funds m.ny not, ho\oTcvc~,' br. 

set up except .upon prior \-lritl.:cn notification to the Difcctor 

of Finance. In the event the Di~cctor of Finance is of the 

opinion thnt the .ndclitiOL'lnl funds will nffcct the sccu1:ity of 

the funds no\Y" in cxistcrlcc or will othcr~·ric.c .adversely nffcct the .. , 

interests of the llnrbor or will adversely nffcct tho accountability 

to the Stntc pur~u.nt'lt to Scctiot'l. 8 of the Act, the Director oE 

Fimmcc m.:ty dis:tt)provc the scttinr; up of ndditi.onnl f~nds except 

he shall not disapprove funds which nrc properly ~nd rctlson.o.bl.y 

SC!t llp for the rcpnymcnt of bot'td ir.sucs o:t.L\t:hor~.zcd pl1rsunnt: to 

Scc~ion 22 of the Act providin~ the mol\ies nvail:tbl.c to the 

llorbor nrc sufficient to meet oblicntions to ful\cl• crcntcd prior 

in time nnd to meet curl:cnt obJ.igat~ons :mel mo.it'ttcna.ncc. 

In oddition to the funds cnumcrn ted above, it is nzrccd 

by the ptlrtics that any nnd .nll receivables* obligotions, 

li(tuidntcd ond unliquidated, nnd choscs in tlction owine to 

the Allthority nt the time of the trnnsfcr nrc likc>~isc transferred. 
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III. LIMITATIONS Otl PROPERTY TRANSFERRED 

The Act provides for the transfer of rcol property 

no\1.~ oHncd by ~he State of C,j,liforni~ nc mo:r:c pn,.~ticulnr).y set: 

forth in ~.:dd Act a.nd it~ Section II hc1:cof. The Act) ho~·rcvcr, 

contoins limitntions, exceptions ond conditions. All of such 

proviE=ion.s nrc hereby m.:tdc .n part of this agreement. It is the 

pur1>osc of the p~rtics in this section of the llerccmcnt to define 

and interpret: the provisions of the Act \>thich require such de ... 

finition or intcrprct~t~on. 

The Act e>:ccpts nncl rcnerves to tl1e Stntc of c.tifornio 

oll subsurface mineral deposits ineludine oil ond gos deposits, 

tozcthcr with the rie,ht of inercs:;. and cercss on th~ properties 

· conveyed to the City for c~q>loration 1 dr:i,lline and cx.cavation of 

such mincr.:~.l 1 oil nnd gas dcpo:::its. Mincrnls covered in this 

. rcr.cfVntion shall be deemed to include all o£ the mi,ncr.,ls 

enumerated in Public Resource:!: Codt"! Sc<;tion 6407. Not;hinc;; 

contained herein,~ ho\1"CVC:t') shall p:r.cel.udc the City in itto 

operation of the Harbor from moving or removing ca.rth, i-ncluding 

sand, gravel lionel other deposits for purpose:; of dredging, filling, 

cxcllv:ltin~, b\.\llthc:tdinz or :my other ordinary port mnintcnnncc) 

construction or reconstruction without ehnrsc to the City thc1:cfor • . . 
The rizht of inr;,rcss nnd eer~ss in the rcr.c~ation sh~ll be . •. 
exercised in sueh manner and to t:uch extent ns not to unrcnson.:'lbly 

intcr£er~ with the property for the purposes for which it hns 

been transferred under the Act. 

The Act reserves to the people of the Stntc o£ California 

the rizht to h~tnt nnd fish in and over the '"ntcrs of San Francisco 

llarbo1·. Tho right to hunt and fish is not intended to ond docs 

not limit the polioc po1·10rs o£ the City in connection with hunting 

or !ishine in the ci.ty limits. The rieht to hunt ond to fish 

shnll not be c:-:crcisod in St1ch fnr.hion as to interfere 'ldth the 

opcrntion o! the property for pot't purposes, nor shnll s1.1Ch 
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riehts be exercised in an m:cn or in such mnnn.cr as to endanger l:hc 

safety of pcJ:so\10 ot· propC!rt:y. 

The. Act' provides the property tr~ncfcrrccl rcmtlitt subject 

to requirement:; of the Dct">rn:tmcnt of Public 't<.'ork.s. Division of: 

Boy Toll Crossi.ngs, Division of Hi&htooys, or the Californio Toll 

Bricl,cc Authority fol.· future rights of 'lil.ly, ot• c.:l.scmcnts or 

mntc1.•inl for the eonctruct:i.on. location, rco.lianmcnt:, <:xpnns5.on 

and mnintcnnncc of bridgcc or ol:hcr trnnspo~t~tion facilities 

without componsot:Lon co the City except that in the cvcn.t improvo­

mcnts, bc.~ttcrmcnts or structurcr. have been placed upon tllc property 

tt"llt'lsfcrrcd compensation shall be ma.tlc to the City and credited 

to tha Hnrbor ImprovcnJCnt Furt.cl for the vnluC! of the improvemcnts0 

bettcr.mcnts or structures taJ(cn, llnd cx:ccpt property t<:~J(cn that: 

w.ns ori.ginnlly ncquircd fo:r val.uchlc cons:F.dcrrltion shall require 

compc~1cntion to the City, 

TRANS!'Ejl. 01' llUJlGE'£ CONTROLS 

The Depnrt:mct\t of Finance npprovcd budget under which 

the Pol.'"t is nct:inc nt the time of the transfer. \olill be deemed .nn 

npprovcd City buclccc for the rcn1nindcr of the f:i.scnl yc.w. This 

h\.1dr;ct will be incorporated ln tho City· Controller's budr.,ctine 

control procodurcS. 
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IV. CONOl'l'!ONS OP 'l'l1ANSF't-:R 

Section 9 of the Act cnumcl:at:cs four C):prcss conditions 

of tr.an.!l!cr. The· first pl:'ovini~n\ which l.·cqt.tircs the City to 

indemnify, do!'c:nd and hold harmless the State uith regard to 

C:Cl."tnin outstn11dine bonded inclcbtcdncsn is to be submitted to n 

special clC~ct:ton to be held 1.n the City ot'l.. Tuesday, November 5, 

1968. The provisions of Section. 9 have been inco:rpoJ~a.tcd in 

the propoc!.tion '1hich 1·1!.l1 be suhn1i.ttcd to tl>e vot"""· It ir. 

rccocn:tzccl thnc thir. condition muse be approved by n. two .. tTlircls 

vote of the people of the City. Asst.unine :lt S.s so llpptovcd, 

the City doe:s by this ner(lC1ncnt also ac1:cc to indcnmify, defend 

nnd hold hnrmlc::::: the Stlltc. wi.th rcenrd to nll outstnndinr; bonded 

indcbtcdnc::::~: incurred fo1.· S~1n Frnnc:i.sco llorbor improvements. 

The bonds no~-: Olttstandine and tho schedule for rcpr:ymcnt arc 

tho~e referred to il'l Section I! .above totcthcr \qith an llddicion.nl 

principal amn of $7,SOO~OOO.OO not yet sold nnd dclivor~d under 

the l-J:n:Uor Development nond J .. aM of 1958 (Un.rUors and Nnvigation 

Code Section 3900 et r.eq,), It is nnticipotccl this $7,500,000.00 

prind.pnl nmount of b.:>nds will be iss1.1cd prior to the transfer 

and th~t ,omoultt:. is thot'cforc included in this agreement of 

indcJnnif:'icntion. To cn:rry out the requirements of this ncrocmcnt 

tho City will set up the funds set forth in Section II nbovc in 

the same m.:1nncr os the funds nrc presently set up in the office 

of the Stnte Controller of the Stntc of Cnlifornin. In the event 

thot th~ro nrc not sufficient funds in tho Son Francisco Harbor 

Improvement, Fund set "P by the City, the l!onrd of Supervisors 

sh.:tll nt tho time of fi.xlng the goncr.al t.ax levy nnd in the 

manner for such general tax levy provided, levy :met collect 

~nnu.ally cnch ycnr until such bonds nrc paid or until there is a 

sum in the treasury of the City set apart for that purpose to 

meet all sum!> cominz dLtc for the principal :md interest on said 

bonds~ n tnx Sllf:Cicicnt to pny the tmm1.al intct"cst Oi'l. such bondr. 
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as the nnmc bC'Icomc due and also such ~art o£ the principttl thereof 

ns shall become due before the procc·cds of n t:nx levied at the 

time for mnldnt,; the n.cccssnry gonct:nl tcu:. levy cnn be mndc nvni.l­

ob~c for the pnY!ncnt of such principal. 

In the same election the City hns submitccd to the 

voters the ~s.sumption of the obliga.tionc and duties of the Port 

Authority oct forth l.~t Section 9 (3) of the Act. It is understood 

th:1t to ::~ssumc these oblizations nnd duties requires a favorable 

vote of the clectort; by D. tl~o-thi.rd3 mnjori.ty. Assumin& such 

fnvornbJ.c vote is hnd the CitY hc-:rcby n~rccs to .o.scumc t:hc obl:t­

sntions a.ntl duties of the Port AL1thority on nll outstnnding 

contractr., lenses, frn1'1chiscs or C&grccm~nts (Bond oblisation~ 

hnvc been referred to specifically in chc provisions above 

and ore not ~ntendcd to be ~ncl\t<lcd in th~s portion of tho 

aereement). The Port will furnish the City wi.th a description 

of .nll kno\"'n oblientions nssumed by the C:i.cy undot· this provision. 

Section 9 (2) of the Act provides that the City shall 

trnnsf:cr to the Stnto amounts ncccssn.ry to pay the amounts due 

upon the bonded ~ndcbtcdneos p_rior to tho time ouch mnounto nrc 

due. "J.'hc City hereby asr~cs to perform this obligntion nnd 1</:Lll 
i 

transfcir from the funds cet up in Section II l1creof or from other 

monies if t~mounts in cuch funds .arc not sufficient to meet the 

oblizntions in full nt lonst ten days prior to the time such amounts 

arc due, Transfers will be made Oil "arrant from the City from 

the City Controller to the Stntc Controller of the Stntc of 

California. He in tur" 1<ill remit to tho State Treasurer of the 

State of Colifornin oo that the provisions of this section will 
I 

be complied "ith. 

The Controller's office of the State of California hso 

schedules of deposit~ for dcponitc into the bond redemption 

fundo. Theoo schedules 1·1ill be modo nvoilo.blc to the Cl.ty. 

Hhcn these schedules arc chnnzcd .ns by t'Ca~on of ch:mscs in 
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retirement of bonds issued or additional issu::m.ec the Controller 

of the State of Cnlifornin hns ndviocd the Comptroller of the 

Snn Francisco. Port Authority of the proposed ne.w chnne,cs in 

schedules and these ch~nscs have in turn been concurred 1.n by 

the Authority. This practice shnll lilte>~ioc be follo"ed by the 

Controller o£ t:hc City so th:~.t· acloqu.ntc !J.rovision can be made 

by the Hnrbot• Board in the tno.nnccmclH: of its monies. 

Section 9 (4) provides thot the City will comply 1>:l.th 

the provisions of this Act, To comply with the provisiol1s of the 

Act the City hereby promises to perfo>-m. all. the oblit;ntions nnd 

requirements set .torch it\ the Act. 1'hi.r.'' t~crccmct"J.C is Ol'lc of: the 

requirements of the Act: nnd the. City nsrccs thnt this ctr;rccmcnt 

will become n bi11dine obligation on the Cit)' prior to the 

transfer. 
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V. .!llil!!]:REN8NTS C)F Tl1£g'l~ 

Section· 4 of the Act requires the City to er.tnblisb o 

scp.:tr.atc Hnrbor Trust Fund or funds in such mant"'ar liS may be 

prcc.cribcd by the Department of Finance. It is the intcntiCln of 

tl1c pnrtics os more spccificolly set forth in Sectioll II hereof· 

thot unless or untl.l tl1is ~srccmo.nt is amended the City will set 

up func;!s to cbc same extent nnd for t:hc soma purpose ns the Por.t 

Authority fund" nr.e presently set up by the State Controller of 

the State of California. When all the bond rcclemptions covered 

by a specific fund hove been mncle or when the monica in Sen 'V1oll 
' li'uucl No. 4 or Sen Wall ~·uncl No. 5 hnvc been c:xhau:;tccl, those 

ftmcls may be discontinued. Nothing in this .agreement, ho\oJCvcr. 

shnl.J. precluclc the cstnbl.:lr.hmcnt of additional funds >~hich may 

become ncccsr.ary bceau~c of H~rbor operations. The City ~greer. 

that' nll monicr. reCeived dlrcctly £1·om or ind~.rcctly attributable 

to the transferred lands or its facilities or any other property 

trl!nsfcrrcd hereunder shall be deposited in the fund or funds set 

up pursuAnt to this n[;rcemcnt. Monies not dcs:i.en.:ttcd for. other 

spcel.f:lc funds shall be deposited in the Son Francisco Harbor 

Improvement Fund. 

Section 4 of the Act provides thot an .nnnu.nl stntcmcnt 

of financial condition nnd operation shall be transmitted by the 

City to the Deportment of Finance coch year on or before 

September 30th for the preceding fiscal year. The Port presently 

Sl.tbmits to the Director of Finance finaneinl stnt:cmcnts in 

acc:orcloncc ~>ith section 7960 "f: the State Administrative Honuol .. 

The City agrees thnt it will C:'::tntinuc to ~ubmit ther-e statements 

nnd thnt for purposes of: the report required under the Act it 

will comply with the St~'ltc Admin1.str.::~tivc Hanunl. The City 

iurthct• ,ne,rccs it will contin1.1C to fu't'n:f.sh tl1csc st.ntcm~nts in 

the s.:tmc clct(lil a:: prc::cmtly fumishccl unless Ot" until it is 
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instructed b)' the Department of Finnncc of different rcquircm::nts. 

Chnnt;c!: will be made by the City it~ the report ..:1S chances :Jrc 

rcq•d.rcd by ~l1c Stntc Administrative Hnnu~l or the Port Authodty 

1-fnnunl. 1'hc Dc[)artment of Finttneo may ~t: ~ny tim~ demand 

.ndcl:i.t:lonn.l material or r.c:port:s if ~uch additional m~tcrial or 

rcr>orts .tLODist t:hc Department in complyit'!S with its duties under 

the Act. 

".l'hC City shr.ll nt the rcquc~.t of the Dcptlrtmcnt of 

Finnncc m:r.kr.: its bool~s nnd records in connection with the Hc.rbot~ 

.nv.:tilablc :CoX' a1.HHt tlt'ld inspection to oudit:ors of the State o! 

CnlS.fornin in order tl1at the State mny insure thot the provisions 

of: the Act nre complied with :mel to nssist the Dcp<lrtmcnt of 

Finmicc in complyinz with its duties under the ft.ct. 

Section 7 of the J\ct requires that the ~ccumulntion ancl 

cxpCl"'d~.turo of revenues for nny single capital improvcm~nt on the 

tr(lnsfcrl.",::cl ltlt"idJ: involvin~ on nmo1.mt in c;•xcc:ss of $250,000.00 

in tho :lCC'r~r.nt:c shnl1 require tbD.t the City file with the 

DcrJn>:tm-::nt of Fin.a.nec n clctt~iJ.(ld dcr.cri-ption o£ the e.n(>ita.l 

improvement 1~~t l.css 'than 90 days prior to the ti.mc of m1y 

disburs~mcnt therefor. or in connection thcre~1ith excepting 

prel:i.miMry plnnnine. The Deportment of Finoncc mny within 90 

days oftcr tl)c ti.mc of such filing determine :tnd notify the City 

that SltCh cap1.tol improvement is not in the stotcwiclc i~>tcrest 

and benefit or is not :mthorizcd by nny of the: provisions of the 

Act, in which event procccclings mny be conducted in nccorda.nce 

with Section 7 of the ,\ct. The dcscripti.on sholl spoc!.fy the 

portiotJlor subdivision or subdivisiOllS of the Act which the City 

deems npplicnblc and its rc~1tOt'\S for rcgm:ding suc:11 expenditure 

.ns beinz so ~ut:hor:tzocl. To facilitntc D;ct1,oo under this so.ctlon 

the pnrtics <lt:,rcc: that the follO\-ling lLt'C: found to be: rnnttc:rs of 

stntc-v1iclc ns diot1s'lguishcd from loc:.nl or purely priv.ntc intc'l:'cst 

and bcncf:i.t. 

(.a) The construction, l"CCOI\strt.tcti.on, imp:.-ovcm~nt, rcp~ir, 
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opcrntion nnd maintcmmcc or works, l.:mds, w<ltcl.·w~yS, nnd 

f<tcilitic~;; necessary for the harbor within the boundcn::i.cs or the 

lands tran~fcrrcd un.dcr the Act, 

(b) 'fhc c::onntruction, rcconttruction, rcp~ir, operation. and 

tn:t.intcn:mcc o1! streets, ro.nclt·nly.s, bridzcs n.nd bridge tippronehcs 

within the b"undnr:J.cs of, or rcnf:onnbly ncc:cr.sa1:y to provide 

immediate. access to s oid harbor. 

(c) The· construction, rcconst:l:'uct:f.or~, rcptlir, operation .nncl 

m.:r;i,ntc.ntLncc of the bull-:.hcads, piers, carthfills, streets, 

roo.d'"oys, bridges, bridec appro.:1chC's, bu1.lclingo, str.ucturc::;, 

rccrc{ltionnl facilit:f.os, l~ndscoping, p:n:k.ing lots, utilities, 

and other improvements on or .odj:'lecnc to the harbor for tbc 

benefit :md usc of said hnrbor. 

(d) The c:onstruct:i.on, reconotruction, repair, opc):~tion .:md 

mZlintcmoncc of s1~all boat harbors, n1nr:J.nc stadium~, mnr:I.timc 

museum) mar1,nc pnrks, bcuchcs, watct'W.:'I)'S, r.nd rclntcd fncilitics, 

on the l.nnclr. trnnsfc:rrccl ur~dcr tl1c Act. 

(c) !n addition to the forcgoine,, any c::x.penditl.n:cn 

pcrmitt:ccl by Sections· 3 or 5 of the Act, or any other usc or 

purpooc of st:atc .. widc, as di~tinzuishe:d from locnl or purely 

private interest nnd benefic which arc in fulfillm~ni: of chose 

trust uses .a~d purposes described in snid Act. 

(f) Tho ~cquisieion of ptopcrty or the rendition of 

services rcns.On.lbly necessary to the cnrryit'l.g out of the 

fot"cr,oine uses and purposes. 

The foregoins sections nrc not intended to limit the 

definition of the term 11 stntc,.,.ide bencfit. 11 If the proposed 

c~pital cxpc11diturc docs not fall within subdivisions (a) to (£) 

above, it mny ncvorthclcr.s. bo .1utho"t'izcd in the manner preseribcd 

in Section 7 of the Act. 
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VI. EXPI'NDITliRE OF PORT FUNDS A~'D USE O!...!!!QE.Il!Q:X 

All. of the property trn11sfcr.rcd under the Ace shall. be 

hclcl by the City in trust for purposes of comme-rce, nuvir,ation and 

fisl1erl.cs and subject to the terms ond conditions specified l.n the 

Act: and s.ct forth in this .:~grccmcnt. All. p~:opcrty acquir~d ~11ith 

funds clcl"ived from the tronsf:errecl propet·ty sholl H.ke1·1isc be so 

ho.ld by tl1e City. Without prejudice to the generality of the 

!orcgoinz the parties aercc specifically to the following. 

Personal Pl4 Dpcrty trDnsfe:rrccl unclcr the Act lll'ld property 

later acquired 'lith Port funds to replace this property sholl 

continue to bear scpm::ntc dc:::innncions so that the trust nature of 

the property can be c:lC'tCl~m:1.r,cc1. ln the CVCI'l.t thnt the City uses 

said pr.oflC:t"t:y for other tl-wn tT.I.l!Jt purposes it: shall rcimburcc the 

Pol.·t iundn for the usc of such property. Nothing hc:rci11 eont.:~incd 

shnll, hO\\'avcr, prevent the Port fro1n d:i.sposinz of personal 

property ...,•hieh is obsolete or is no lonzcr required for the trust 

purponcs, but :i.n th::tt event the funds dcr:J.vcd thc1:c.from sh.:tll 

bccotnc Port fund~ subject to the purposes of the tru!:t. 

The City shall not require tho Port .to perform functions 

or ncccpt or employ pcrsonn.al in excess of funeti01lS 01: pcrscllit'lcl 

required to cnrry out the purposes of the. trust. 

The Port pt·cscntly mnintains some streets and roadway~ 

within the Po~t area. Tho City may, if it elects to do so, 

unclcrtakc some or all of those functions of maint:cn~ncc, but it 

lMY not rcqui,:c the Port to n1aint~"'in streets nnd rottdwiiyS outside 

the Port .area. nor mny it require tho Port: to maintuin streets, 

road~<oys, brl.dces or other facilities maintained by the City at 

the t:i.mc of transfer) nor mny it require the 1?ort to undertake the 

furnishinz or mair.tcnnncc of streets, road~o1nys .and briclzcs 

prim.:1rily dcsir,ncd as thorouc;hfarcs for the City ro.thC!l" thnn ns 

roadt.:ny.!= f:ot' Pol:t purposes. In the event stt'CCts, ro:tdwnys or. 

brid~cs perform a du:~.l !:unction lin t.ppropriat~ divisior1 of cost:s 
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oholl be modo. This provir.ion is not intended to .o.Hect the 

Emb.o.rcadcro llhich is prcocntly maintnh1ed by the Pore, nor in it 

intentlcd to prc:vent the Port !rom c:onot1:uot:ins or mttint:.:li'.ninr, nny 

street~) roc<hray,;, bridc~s or s1.dcwnlks the Port clccms required. 

Police truff:lc sm·v:i.ccs in the Port area nnd protectiCll1 

of Port property is presently pcr!orm:·d. by tho 'Port's police 

officers. In the event thnt clutics other than police trn!f:i.c 

scrv:i.cctl in the l?ol.·t e~rc'' or rrotcct:i.on of PoJ:t pt·opC!rty o.rc 

requit·ccl of the Fott pol~.cc, p:lyfncrtt for such ndditional duties 

shall be mndc !:rom other than Harbor funds. 

Revenue::= t•cccivccl from pnrldl'IC meters in~to.llccl on the 

transfcL'l.'cd lancls shnll COl'ltit'IU<~ to accrue to tl1c Port so long c1S 

the Port i11stnlh:, opcr.o.tcr. <ltid mnintnim; the meters. 

ThQ Po1.·t f.ll:'(lSCI"ltly pcr!ox-ms nt its O\•m c.x.pcnsc some 

fi,rc protcct:i.on services .and reimburse::~ the City £o1.~ c.crt.:1.in 

otl1C!'l.' fire protection services. In the event: ~dd:i.tion~l fire 

protcctioti scrvi.ccs nrc required, .SL1ch ndclit:ionnl services shnll 

not be pnid fo1.· OL\t of 1-klrbO:t' funds. 

Nothinc :i.n thi• osrocn1cnt shall preclude the Cicy from 

un<lcrtnl~ing ~11 or part: of tl1o services presently pcrfoJ:mcd by 

the Pore if ccono1nics uill result therefrom. The Port shall 

not, hov~cvc.r, be required to contribute to Ci.ty services i£ such 

contribLltion \>lill result in expenditures gr12 .. 1tcr th~1n tbost! 

required. 
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VII. !ill!ONONOl!§..QEilllATIO]i 

Sc~tioi1 12 o£ the Act prov:f.dcs t:hnt the tr.nnsfcrrccl. 

property shall be t.tndcr the aclm:tnistrat:ion ond control of the 

ilnrbor Com:nicsion of the C1.ty £mel County o£ Sm1 Fr.:~nd.sco. 

Section l~ of the Act prov:i.dcs for Chc cstnblichm~nt of D. scp.:n."ntc 

ll.ol.·bo't' 'l'l,·u.st: Fund or Funds l.ll'on the trnnsfer. Section 2 of the 

Act pl;'oviclcs tlw.t the pror,crty transferred be l1eld in tru:::t for 

specified purposes ond r.~1bjcct to the terms and eoncl:f.tiotl~; or 

the hct. In orclcl:' to in!::u'l.~c that thcoc provioiom; be complied 

>~ith it is odvisoble toot the tronofen·ed property be 

.administered independently !:r:om ot:hc1.· C:l.t:y p1:opc.rcy. C<:ttaS.n 

chnrtcr Amcndm:mts .nrc before the voters dcsi,cncd to in.r.urc this 

lluton~mouc opcrntion nt'ld such .o.mcnr.lmont:s \·1ilJ. be opprovecl ·by the 

voters prior to the trnnsrcr. It is .ng1:ccd by the pnrtic::: that 

the follot11ine, provisions .:n:c ncccssa.'l.·y to the opcrntion tts set 

forth hereinabove ancl will be continued in c.f:fcct \.1l'lles~ or ttntil 

this azrcc.mcl"'l! ic "mcl\t1cd by mut:unl consent o! the p~rtics 

hereto~ except that chances m:1y be mllclc in subp.::rc::grnph S i'LS set 

fortl1 therein. 

Tho Port Commission provided f:or by the Act sholl h"ve 

ttll the p0\1ers .:tnd clutics f,iVCU to bOc"'.t"clS and COtn~iliSSiOnS by 

section 19 of tho chnrtor and onll have the power to est.1hli.sh 

such dcp.:trtmcnts and burc.:1us .:ts rnay bc ncccss.:11:y or convenient 

for the concluct of its affol.rs. Subject to tl1c terms an<l 

conditions of the transfer and this agreotncnt, the Fort 

Commission. shall have the control and mnn~gcmcnt of all rc3l :lncl 

pcrsonnl property trnnsfcrrcd under the Act, or other~1isc 

.acquired or purch~scd with funds ·under its control or llequircd or 

putchasecl \Jy it >1ith:i.n the scope· of its ~uthorl.ty, or othcrwice 

placed under its 11\.~m.:lt:,cmcn.t, supervision ll.nd eontt"ol.. The 

property under. the control and manne,cmcnt or the com~o1ission shnl.l 

be l~nown ns the Port Area. ThC! Por't: Com.11ission shiill have the 
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power nnd duty to unc, conduct, opcrlltc, maintain, man~1gc, 

rceul.:~tc, and c:ont-:ol. the Port: ArcD. of San Frrmeisco nnd to do all 

th:i.lt8S it dc~n~~ nccccn.nl"y in connection \11th tl11:: usc, conC:uct:, 

operation 1 m~:mnecmcnt, maintcnnncc, rceulatio111 improvcn1crlt ancl 

C011trol of saicl: Port hrc.n, or Hhich rnay fm:thcr the intcrcat.s of: 

the Pol·t in \\lorJ.d trndc, in,clmHnc, w:i.t~1out limiting the 

f;C'ncr.:Llit)• of the forczoing, the exclusive pouct· to perform or 

,nccompl$.:;11 the f:ol.lowtnz in the Po1·t Area: 

1. The iml>r.ovcm":!nt, oper:;t5.on !lml concluc::t. o£ the h.:n:bor, and 

.cmy tm.cl nll impt'OVelnCnt& or !acilit:i.~s J.ocntcd thereon; 

2. The construction, rcconctrllction, rcp.:d.r, opcr~1tion m1d 

usc o! :tll \>Iorl-.r., bui.ldi11£.'.S, f.:tcilitics, utj,lit:ics, st:r.ucturc:s nnd 

.nppl:i • .:mccr. incidental, ncccsr.:lr}• or convct1iCmt fot• the promotion 

nnd nccOlltiloc1.:~.t.ion cr co:n~'iJercc and na.v:tzntj,on, or locntccl l<Jithin 

the Port Atc.:t; 

· 3. The c!:.tnblishm:!nt, in1provcmont nnd conduct o! r.:tilr.oacl 

.:mel ~iviution rncil:i.t:l'.cs ill'ld nll ~-,orks, builcl:tnzs, facil:i.t:i.c.:s, 

\.ltilitics, structt.ll."CS ~mel .nppli.:mccs· inc:i.clcnt.:~l, ncccssar.y or 

convcn1.cnt fo-:: the prom~tion .nnd concluct of .:tir co:n:ncrcc ~mel 

nnvignt:i.on :mel r.:tilt·oa.d transpOl:t;.:lt:l'.on; 

1._ The construction, reconstruction, rcp.:1ir, mrd.ntcnnncc .:mo::l 

opcr..:tt1.ot1 or: _Public l.H.tiJ.clinss, p:rrks, pJ . .:tyz,rolmds, publ:i.c 

cducntion~l :tncl rccrcntion facilitic$ nnd all works, buildings, 

fncilitics, structures nnd ~pplianccs incidental, ncccss~ry or 

convcni.cnt for the promotion ,and accom:l1och:.tion of Dny such uses; 

5. The preservation or rcctorntion of m~rinc resources 

consistent ~d.th the primary mis~ion of the hn:Oor of: San 

Fl.'~nci:}co; 

6. The grant of fr.:~nchisC'.s thereof for limited pc:riocls not. 

c:xcccd:i.n~; GG years for wlmrvcs .:tnd other public uccr. :md pllrposcs 

tn"ld the lc:~so of: saicl lands, facilitle!s, or nny p~rt:. thereof for 

limited period:; not: cxccccl:tnz 66 yc.:~rs 1 ::mcl the collt'!ction oncl 

rctct1t:i.o11 of rents .nncl othe-r l;CvCn\IC"S f.rom such lcns~s, 

l.S • 
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frnnchiscr., pcrn1its, lic:cnsc·s, :tnd privilcecs. Such lease Ol.' 

lc(l.scs, frc(nchi~cs, permits, lice:t\r.cs, mHI privilc~cs shnll be for 

p~trpo!!C5 coasistc11t with the trusts upon \<.•h:J.ch the land~ ore held 

by the Stntc .:ind ,.,ith the rcqui1.·cmcnts of com.'l'lcrcc and nnvigntior'l., 

or f.f the Pore Contni.::.!>:ton of the City ~m.d County of Snn Frnnci!:>CO 

clctc1·mincs thnt nny porc:ton of the trans!crrccl l.nndc is not 

required for tho for.czoinz 1.wcn d~scr:i.bc:tl in l:his St'ction, such 

lt>nSc Ol.' lc.:scr., frllnchif:Cs, pc,:m:i.ts, liccn5C'S, :m.cl pl.'ivilct;c:;, 

mny be- for the purposes of such clc:v~ lopi-:1C'nt and usc ns the 

commission finclr. ,.,.ill yield mnximum profi C$ to be uGccl by the 

c:ommlr.sion in the furtherance or commerce ·nnd n.nv).gntion; 

7. Lcascn nn.d frnnchis~.r. er.:~nt:cd or m~clc by the l'orc 

Comtlli!:ts:Lon sh.nlJ. be administered c~tclLinivcly by the opc:rnt:tne 

force:s of the Port Com.m)..n:Jiol'l; 

8. There shnll be n l'orc Pil.·cct:or \•;ho r.hnll be the chief; 

cxccu'tivc of the Port Cor..miG!3ion n.nd '~ho Gh~ll hnvc. the rnnnoccmcnt 

of the a£fnirr. Dnd :lCtiv),t:iCS pl.nccd LIOdCl" the jurJ.r.diction of the. 

.com."nission. He shnll devote his entire time to the dutie>~. of hi~ 

of£icc and his s3lnry sh~ll be fix.ccl by the com:nission. llc sh.:tll 

hold his office at the plcnsurc of the commis~ion tt.t'ld nhnl.l hnvc 

the m:mnzcmcnt of Said llnrbor .:~nd of :tll of the fllciliticr. and 

equipment: thcrco£ nntl or all burcnus .<Ind dcpnrtmcnts c.st~bl.ishcd 

for the opcl."<ltion of snid ll.nrbor or for the opcro.tion of nny 

equipment or facility thereof. Subject to the approval of the 

eommisr.ion he shall appoint ond remove any nnd All heads of 

dcpnrcmcnte or burco1us ·who arc not subject: to the civil service 

provinionr. of the chortcn:. He shall pOZ$CSt the. ncccr.snry 

.administrative, eXecutive :md tcchnicZLl quZLli.ficn:t:ions necessary 

~o en.1blc him to perrorm the duties of hio: office. !lis 

cornpcmsation sh~ll not exceed prcvnilinz snlnricr. po.id those 

hold5.ns; simil.nr positions in compnl.·nblc mnritimc employment:.. 'The 

c::orr.:nission mny confct' on hi.rn such ncldit:ionnl po;olcrs nnd nuthority 

ns it: mny :oe>c f:l.t. It is 1.tndcrstood nnd rtgrccd thnt the presently 

20. 
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,incumbent Pore: Director sh.:~ll l:Cm:tin the: PoL·t: D:l.rccl:ot• nnd 

continue to hold his office tlt the pJ.cn!':urc of the com:nission. 

The pl!'opol:c:d ch::trtcr amcnclmont \'lhich nclds St:etS.on t~a. 3 pr.ovidcs :i.n 

.subscct1.on 8 tbci:co.E thnt the Port Director shall bo nominated for 

np(>t:~int:ntC\"lt by the eon\.1lic~ion .:l.t'~d nppOil'l.tccl by t:hc Mayor. It is 

unclcl:~;t:ood :mtl agreed thnt u nominee for the position of Port 

Director shnll bccontC' the Actinz, Por.t Director upon his ncecptoncc 

of the nominotl.on, The Aotinc Port -Dir.cctor sholl bo. tho obid 

cxcc:ut:i.vc or the Po1:t Com~11is~$.on nnd nct:l.nz head of tho department 

and s1Hlll serve as such Actine Port Dircctol.· nt: the plcnsurc of 

the comt;tts~::i.on U11t:tl SllCh time ns he shnll be appointed Port 

Director by Chc Hnyor, or in the event he is not so .nppointcc1J 

unt:U. such t:i.m~ as the cot;uniss:lon uomin.:tt:cs another pcrsm'l. for 

the position of Port Di!:cctor. It is tJnder~;tood and .nerccc1 thllt 

not1d.ns :i.n the £oroeoine prov:i,s:Lons Gh.:\J.l be constr~1ccl to prohib:i.t 

.nn tllnCt"tdmcnt to the C:h.:tX't:Cr. to provj.clc for the appointment o.f .:a 

Port Director by the comm~.sr.ion. 

9. To rceulatc the bcrt:hinz., nnchoring, tO'i't:lnr:;, load in~ nnd 

unlondinr. nnd moo::':tnz of vessels wich:l.n the Po:t.•t i 

10. 'l'o issue. rcecipts, tlcgotinblc or otfhc!l,"\otisc, for propert)t 

01: mcrc:11.:mdisc:: in its charee or por.scs::;icn; 

11. To fh; .nll rates, cloct(.nga, rentols, tolls, wharfage, and 

eb.:ttgcs, fot' the usc nncl occupation of the public fnciH.tics Ol." 

appl.innces or the Port, and for services rcndc_rccl by the Port 

Commi!H>ion, :md to provide for the collection thc'rcof; 

12. To enter into contrnc.ts, aercC!mcnts, or stipulationG 

gcrmnnc to. the scope of its po\•Tcrs ilncl duties; 

13. T~ nivc suc:h bonds or nssurnnccs as mny be rcquir.cd by 

the United Stntcs in the operations pcrm:i.tt:ed hereunder; 

14. To provide oncl equip offices w:I.th:i.n or without the Port, 

with:i.n otht'.!r Et;~.tcG, or in fol.'cien countr:l.cs, o:~nd tht·ough such 

cmpJ.oycr.c ~nd :~ecncics an it mny deem expedient; 

15. To contract for t~.m1 ope-rate forcizn trrtdc zo~cs Hi thin 

21. 
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the Port ArN\ or .ou:dlinry to tt1c Port Arcn, or such zones ol· ::uo .. 

~on en m: hnvc bcC'n opcrn ted by the S~1n F'r.::tt'lci.sco Po1:'C Aut:hori ty • 

• \~;rccmt>11t mny be mndc with the Public Ut:ilit:i.ca Camm:.i.t'l::d.on for 

opcn:l:t~.on or ftltllt'c zones ot.· st.tb .. zol"l.t'r; in. other .orC!~Hn 

16. Mcmbc1·z :::.nd of:f:i.ccl~S of tht.! Port Com:nission shnll be 

1 
cx.cm1,t ft•o:n the p1·ovisiom: of the City chn_rtcr ~clntinc to 

nbscnccr. !rom the St:ntc. but shall ndvi!~C Chc,Nnyor mld the llonrd 

or Supervisors in ::11:lvnncc~ o£ such obr;cnccs; 

17, Mny pro:notc the 1norit:l.mc n1Hl commo_rc:i..1l intctcsto o£ the 

Hnrbor by .:~dvcrt:i.sing itEi ndvnntngcs nnc.l f:tciliti<~n nnd by the 

solicitntion or bm:dncss. 'l'hc ndvcn:t~.r.:tnc nnd sol5.citnt:i.on mny 

be conducted \dthin or \<Jithout this St:otc :1ncl throur;h such 

.o,ccncics, mcdh1run, employees and ngcntn nr. nrc dcccrm:i.n.cd by the 

co:lllnir.:;ion. The com.-nir.r;ion 1Mij' 1 in itti clisct·ction. publir.:h :mel 

di~tri.hUCC ;I mnt:tz:i.nCJ pnmphlcts, booltJ.CtS nnd other p~il'lt:Cd ~L'Id 

.ndvcr.i:.i~ine nmtt.cr. for the pul.-posc of developing t1:nf!1.c:: nnd 

promotinz nnd mnintninj.nz the commerce tmcl prc::::tir;c o! the Port, 

lind tnny unc~ any monies of the Hnrbor Fund fo:-: the.~ .cpccinl 

purpt~OC!.i :tuthor:i.~ccl by th:ts provision. Member::; nnd employees or 

the co:m:1ission in nttcndinl: convcntionr. or pore ~uthoritics and 

mccti11Z::: of tranzportat:ion cll1bs, trade nsrmcintions :mel busin<'r.s 

orennizntions th;lt may :1dvancc the interests o! the Port ::hall bco 

.nlloioJC:d their nctu~l ncccs:;ary c>:pcnscs in the pcrrorrnancc of such 

scrvic:C!s ns mny from time to time be deemed clcsirnblc by the 

co:runis::iion ond sholl be ollo\'lCcl hospitality expenses ncecsr.arily 

incurrtH.l in furthcrinz the intcrcr.ts of the. Port; 

18. To i$suo :t:cvcnu¢ bo~'l.dc for pllrposcz of the Acti 

19. lo: CXl)Cnd nll ful'l.cls ncecsso.ry to t:hc carrying out of the 

poHCl"G :md duties h.c:1:cin cxpX'C'St:cd; 

20. This section docs hereby vest in the Port: Con411ission nll 

of; the p0\·1crs set fot•th in Section 3 .nncl Section 5 of the Act, 

It is the unclcrstandin~ o£ the pnrtic::. thnt the fi.nd:i.ng 
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of the Dcp.:ll:tm~nt of City Plrmn:tng thnt: n propo::;cd cap:i..Cnl 

improvement project on Port: property doer. not conform to the 

mn~t:c1: plnn c;1oc6 ·not prcchtc.lc the Bottrd of S~!pcrvir.O)'S f1:0111 

{H.Jthori?.:i.l'l~ :'In :::q>prol'ri<~tion or: Port: f.untl::; fat the cnpitnl 

improvcm~nt: pl.·ojcct, 

'l'bc Port may cont:l:nct: for .:md be r.c,q}ond.hle for :l.ts 

0\\'1\ tclct,hCJt\C r.r.r.vicc. 

'l't·.rwcl ttlJ.o,\•nnccs for the Fort Di1:c:ct:or tmcl 

Commi~:~:ioncr::; ~1ith:i.a ond \oJ:i.thout the St:~tc shnll be no lcos th.:~n 

then ~·mthor:i,:t.c:d by the no.n·c.l o( Cc.1ntrol of the Stn t:c of: 

Cnl.iforn:r.n. Trnvcl nllm~·:::ncc.-s !or rort: cmplcyces outniclc the 

St~1tc shnll be. no lC!r.s than thcr1 authorized by the Boat·d of 

Contr.ol of tllc Stol:c of C;!lifol:n:tn. 
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VIII, TnAI!S!IER OF E~n>WYEES 

Scc'cion /.0 of the Act provLclco ch:~c the• cnJployoco. of: 

the Snn. Fr..tmc:i.sco Port Authority ,..,ho at the time or the trancf:cr. 

nrc cnt:i.tlC'.cl co the bcmc£:1 en o£ the civil service provic:i.ons of 

tho Stncc o:C Cal:i.forLlin shnll he cont:lnucd in thc:i.1: rc~pccti.vc 

pos:i.t:i.O;JS .and r.hall cont:i.nuc to hold t:hcdr pos:i.t:tons purnunnt to 

the c:tv:i.J. scrvJ.cc- prov:i.s:tol'lS o£ the chnrtc:r of the City of: San 

}"rnnc:tsco. 'l'hc Act further (lcf:i.t1c.o::: the r:i.z.hts of thtr.c employees. 

l'h~ chnrtcr. provic:i.on::; ,.,:~:i.ch 1dll be submittC'd tn the voter.~ on 

Novc:mhcr 5 • 1968 1 ~mel pnrc:i.cul.n:dy Section !~8.4 thereof • further 

clcfinc th<~ r$.ehts nnd pr:tv}.l.e:;cs o£ the tt·onsfcrrcc1 cmploycar-. 

Th:i.s nz,.~ccmcnt: shnll not be decn'lctl to l~.m:i.t Ztny or: th~ right.<: or 

pr:i.vilogcr. a!fordC!<.l the cmploycc·.s under c:tthcl: the Act or the 

c:hQrbcr pl·ov:ts:i.onn b1.tt :ts :i.nt:enclccl only to correct nmb:1.gtliticr. 

or 'l:cnt:f::i.rm those 'X'i8hts. 

It is anxcc~cl by the p.:trticr. that the <iatc nt ,.~h:tch the 

bc1'1C'fits of civil st'rviec prov:i.sions will be dctcrm1.ncd shnll 

be the clctc of the tr.:\n~fcr of the property. An employeC'. Hho 

qun1ifics unclcr this provision is any employee rcg1.1lnrly certified 

llnd appointed from :.1n cliaiblc B.st. Th:I.s incht~c~s· State Belt 

&'1·.11ro;:o.c1 employees who clo col.lcctivcly bnreain btlC o.rc <!mploycc.s 

entitled to civil service: provisions tvhich provisions covcr.n 

their stnt:us over m.:t.ttcrs for which they hove not collectively 

b.:n:r,ni11C?d. At: the tim~ of: tJ::.:msfcr there may be sor.~c tcmpor.nry 

or cnsunl cmployccr. who do not have the benefit o! civil service 

Pl.'ov1.c:l.onn. 'Xhc r:i..ght:s o! nn cwtploycc in th:ts st£tt:us "-':i.ll tcrmin.1te 

n::; ~.t ~-1ould ht:.d the p't"CIPCJ::ty not bC"Cn trtlnsfcrrcd to the.- City. 

Other cm:>loycc:s may • ho~·tC!vcr, be on t:cmpor~ry D.ppo:i.\1 t:w:~n t aNn:i.t:i.nz 

e:i.v:i.l. service C:XOILlin.:~.t$.0~. In t:hnt C'.Vcnt the C:i.ty ,.;iJ.l· schcclu).c 

the ncCC!CSt\1.)" cxnminnt:tons an soon .ns poasiblc so .ns to insvr.c 

eontim,-lty of cmploym~n.t '"'hC'.ncvcr por-:siblc. 
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It in nz,·c-r.~d by the p:1rt:i.cr. tho.c on m::tttc~rc of zcn~.or:l.t:y 

for tr.nnsfcl4 l:c-.d cmpJ.oycca the City shnlJ. see: up n ncm:i.o1·:tty r.ystcw 

t1n:i.n~ t:llc c1r~tc of the! f::b:-~-:t pc1.~1nancnt nppo~.t'ltm~nt to C"tnployJilC!nt 

\Imler St;;ttt~ cJnployu1CH,L: 5.n the S[lulO mmmcr nnd to the r.~1n1o extent: 

ll!l :tf the employee h;'l.d in fact hct;m employed \.lt'l(h~r the c;.cy system. 

"J.'hc-. r.chc<.~t1J.c nO\i' r.ct t.lp by the C:i.ty shnll, thcrcr.orc!~ bC! ext:cnclC!cl 

co the trnn~J:'crrccl CJhployccs ~.n ncconlm1cc ~'l'.i.th the term~ of the 

Act nnd th:i.s n3rc•c!mont. 

The Act prov:i.dcs for the retC<nt;,on by th~ trtmnrcrrccl 

CJllpl.OyN.•r. o·i r.nl:tr}'~ cn1ploymcnt c:oJ,t~ft:i.ons and bcncf:i.t:G. At the 

prc~aC'nt l::i.nw pcrmnncnt ::lt:ntc employees hnvc equal or ercnt:cr sick 

lcc.vc nne~ v.:-:cnt:1on pr.;lv:i.lc~zc..•s than prov:t.dcd !ol.· by C:i t)· civil 

r.crvi.cc, 'l'O CllJ:'l."Y O~H: the }>l"OViG).onc. of the f.ct the C~.ty shall 

pe!r.m$.t the.• trrmsf(!t'J."C!d employees to carry over. to Ci.ty scr.vlcc all 

nccUhlLIJ.ntcd s:i.ck l.Ntvc :l.l'ld to contin'l.lc to {!.C.CllJlllU.r.tc .sick lc:wc l!.S 

th": C!mplo)rcc '"'Ot.llcl lw.vc .:tCC\I'~o)Lilntccl th.~c si.cl~ lcnvc l~.id ht> ra.m:1:tn~d 

:i.n St:ntc service-.. VacAtion r5.eht::~ ~d10ll lil.o;c'·':i.sc be CC.X't.':i.ccl over. 

\Vhc1:e th~ <~lnplo:,.c.·c has ercatcr va.cntion r.iehts under. St.:ltc scor.v:!.cc 

he sha.J.l continue to nccruc vacat::f.on r:i.ehts i.n the sr~r.~c m:mncr. ancl 

to the S:'!.JIIC! extent ns if; he had r.ema1.nc:cl ~.n State service. Sotnc 

employees huvc ~;roup insurance or other. inDur.::.ncc pol:ic:icr. \o1h:i.ch 

nm}~ hc- c.1cpcmk~t'l.t on n1cmhcrsh:i.p in the Califon1:i.n State~ F.mpJ.oyccs 
.· 

Asco~i::.t~.on or so~11<:: othC!r. gt'Ot.ll) .nt::socint:ion or. urr~n~cu:cnt thnt may 

not be nvr3.l~blc to the employee by rene on of the tr..,nsfcr. !.f 

thcoc employees ~..till no }.oneor be clie:i.bl c fOl" this rnc~bcrzh:i.p the 

City aerc.:!G to nssir.t the cmr1lOyt>cs in \o:hntcvm:- way :i.s nccc!lsnry 

to cont~.n~1c these in~urnncc pol.:i.c:i.cs. In the event that tbc car:r:5.e::r. 

t"<!(Jttlrc~s i\c:.cation.:-tl contr:tbt.lt~.on f:rom chc C1~1,rloy~c by J:~ason of t:hc 

di!H~ont:i\-,;.lco.o1c;c i.n :1 zt;oup Tncm~;~~rr.h1.p nnd in tho event the C:i.ty clln· 

''ot: n:lt.:it.f:t the cnr.t~iN:- •JT:lth r.:con:}JC:r~hj.p in itG o~m Bl·oup for the 

purpor..-: or cont:inu:i.n~ tlv·~ pol:i.c:i.C>.c \V"ithout chnn~c S.n amount or 
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o.cld:i.tionnJ. ch.:trgc!:l thnt: I'M\~r be rc-qui,~cd by tho C.:'!.l~J.':i.cr. by t"C!~u.:on 

or the cmployt•c 's losr. of tnC!lllhcrchip 1.n th~ ~p.'OLtp or. cupply cq1.J:i.v .. 

nlc~111: in$\lr.'nnr;c ,.~ith some other cnrr.ic:>r.. 

The Stnt~ pr.cGcntt'y prov'lc~cc a contr:i.bt1tion to~·mrc~ p.:-:y­

tncn'i: or: the: cmployt!C 1S health inrJurntlCC~ plnn, Th:i.c pn)'hle'!nt sl1cll 

be co·,,t:;i.nucct by the C:i.tj• f:o1: c(l.ch tt·mu:f:crJ~cd c:tnplC'Iycc 1.n the ~nmc 

nmOL,nt n:J is nt .1.ny t:i.r:~>::! nllO't·tNi by t11c St::tt<.•, 

P01.'t: C:lill'~loy~":.::~ .:t:r.~ pl:Or:C!nt:ly <'tl.loW..!t1 t:c sclcct: tlw:i.'l.' 

O\vn doctor ~mel hocpil::tl '~hen r.'L~cc:i.vin~ bcnc:r:its t.tncicr H'ot·luncn 1s 

Coll1pCi1~:{'.t:i.Oi.1. These :r.:i.~hts shnl.l be contim.ted by the C:i.t:y for cn~h 

trnnr.f.c•rrcd t•mploy.:-c so long an thr.: prnct:~.cc ~.s pct"l!l:lttc'1 by the 

An cn1plo>·mcmt contl.:i.tiot, ntH1 bcnC'f:tt of: tlw tr~m~fm:r.ec1 

ctnp}.oy~cr. :i.s the r.ie,ht co t:nl:c comp(:C;i.t:ivc cx::m:tnnt:i.om~ fo1: other 

poo:i.t~.om; in StntC' S(•.rv~.cc. Six month~: D.ltcr th::: trnnsfC>:r. the 

tr.c.ns.::cn:rc<i CILll'lloyccs \<lJ.ll h~vc lor.t this r:i.r;ht: :i.n Str!.Cc scrv1.cC":, 

but thC! C:tty sh.'!.ll nrror.c1 ~ ~~-IL\;i.J.n:r. r:tg:·tt i.n C5.ty scrv;i.cc 5.n the 

sa.rnc~ n:nnnc:t· .:~nd to the snmo c~tcnt tlP. :r.c \;'Oulcl .;d!Zorcl to Chc em-

ployce;~: h~t! they bcc.>n c;_ity employees or.5.gJna.ll.y. If: the employee.~ 

lll."C ll.ccct"~t:Ccl :i.~ tho nc~.,. pos~.t:::to1'lS they shnJ.l r.ct~:f.n such :ulcl~.t:::ton~l 

bcnc!'i ts ns they hnd \.lntlcr thl'.s nsrccna:m c "t·1i th rcf:crencc to the 

Scnt.C'. Employees Retirement System; vacation riehts, sick lce~vc, 

inr;urnncc pl.":i.vilc,tcr. nne': ,:i.roilm:- bcmc!1.ts, 

Ench employe~ cl:Lziblc fat" t"t".:tn!;iC'r. sh~ll bo noti£ietl 

by the Fort Authod.cy or hir. r1.aht co transfer co anolhQr Stutc 

.necncy ot· to be placed on n. State lllyoff liot HitM.n s:b: month::; 

from the Cntc of crnnsfer.. 

Sect:.~ on 20 of the t".ct provides the employee sh~ll rctn:i.n 

h:J.o pos:i.r:~.on on C)d.stinz nubc1ivisionaJ . .nnd clcpartmcntnl promot::i.onnl 

:tn<~ cl1.3~.blc l:i.str. o.r. long ns such lfr.t:r. nrc 1.n effect, The em .. 

· plo)·cc on r.uch list shnll be• ccrtif:i.cCl from the list :i.n the [::llll~ 
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mannc1: nn.d to the ruunc c~::.tcnt nn 5.f tho employee hncl rcnmincd in 

sent<~ Gcl:vicr.!. 

j 
1

Scctioli 20 of the Act providC'S the employee !lhn.ll rct~:i.t'\ 
f' • 

ovcr.t:~uno ~ntl shift prcm~.\lm pny ~thcncvcr and 1·i!1Cl"C\vcr npp].5.cab1.c. 

Thcr.c bcncf:i :.~$ slmll be ~f:for.<lccl by the· c:r. ty in c:hc nmnc manner 

uncl co the !>ClnK: N:t,.::l'lt: ac if the:: cr.1ploycc hnd rcmn~.nccl 1.n Stntc 

scrv:i.cc. 

Section 20 of: thn Act pr.ov:iclcs tht:! cmt)loyce>. r.hr.l.l hcvc 

cnllh~elc n~H1 ntnmiby pay \1h~;'Jcwc!r .:mel '"'~wr.cvcr appl:!.cf'obl.c. These 

bcncn.t:.!l r.:·wU. be affol."(k~c.1 by the C1.ty j,n the sntr.c mnnnc)~ .nnd to 

the ~:~m~ c~:t~nt n!> i£ the employee h:-td rcmaincc: :i.n St:~tC! r:e:t·vi.cc. 

Scct.1.on 20 of the Act proviclc::; the! City chn3.1 ":aivc 

rcG~<k:ncc rcqu$.rcmcat:;; f:or th~ trnnsr.c~rl:ccl c:.n1)loyccs. 'l'hc City 

nexc.:cs 1.t sholl permit chc tr.:tnl:lfcl'rccl employee:; to rcs;f.<'lc :i..tl any 

nrcn \·~~it\ tt•Vt:!l.' \·d thou t: limi ta t:ion. 

Sc•ctim~ 20 of the Act provider. the transferred cmplo)rccs 

shnll h.·wc cont:i.ll\Jcc1 monlbcrsh.:i.p 1.n the Public EmpJ.o;·ccs Rct:i.rcmc11t •· 

System. 'l.'hc C:f.ty sha.ll p~rmit t11c tromsfcrrccl employees to con .. 

tinue to be member:; of the P!.'blie Employees Rctir.crncnt System 't·lith 

nll the r~.ghts, pt~ivilc~cs ~11<1 bencf~.ts of snid cys tem, :mc1 thoy 

shall tlOt; be r.tcrnbC'l.'S of; t:hQ San. F-rancisco Cit>• onc1 County Employee~' 

Rct:U:crncnt Sy:;tcrn. Th~ C:i.t:y shall t~cr!:'orm r.l.l acts ncccsr.acy to 

cont~.m.1c t~1c tncmbcrchip of S\tch employees in snicl Public Employees 

Rct:i.rewc.:mt: System. 

Employees of the Stiltc Dclt Rnilro.1.cl c.rc not mcrilbcrs of 

the P~1bl:tc: l:::·upJ.oyct"s Rct::trcmcnt System of the Stnt:c of Cnlif:orns:n 

but ~rc covered \.lnt~cr the provit:i.o11r. of th¢ Ra5J.ro~cl Rc:t:i.l.·c:ncnt: 

Ac~;. Such crr.plCl}'C:c:r. E:h~ll. not: be l"Cql.t:i.rcd t:o be m~!mb¢t'~ of th~ 

S:m lo,r:mcisco Cicy nnc.l County Employc~s' Rct:il:cn,cnt Syr.tctl'. but 

m:'l.y cor:t:hlllC to b~ covcrcc! \.lnc.lcr the prov:i..s).onc of the Rn:i.lronc.1 

Rctit'C!lLIC.nt Act. 
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Section 20 of the Act rcquircr. thnt tftc tl:nt'lt.f:ct•t:ocl 

omploycor. r.h:~l.l rot:·:d.t'l thcd.1: option to conl::i.nuc ::u'ly prcccnt: hc:ll.l:h 

inr.urnncc~ ~nd .e~o(tp lif.'c covcrau.c. The Cit)• acrcc.~ to pcr£o1:m {Ill 

nets ncccs!:.:n-y to insure th.'lt these riehts ,.,,tll be cnrricd out: in 

the ~:uno mnnn~t· nmt to the !::1.11\C' c~:tcnt nc i.f the cmployc~c had 

continued in Stcttc scLvicc. J.n the event thi.s cnnnot be nccompl.inhcd 

without the p::ymcnt of aclditj,onnl prcm:i.um the City f:hnll compcnnntc 

the cn1ployct• :Col: the cor.t of: the nddit:i.onnl pt'C!Illium. 

Employee::: ,.,ho ::n:c cmplo>•cd nf:'tcr the d.o.tc of trttnr.fcr. 

sh::tlJ, be .nnd bccon'c C:l.ty cmploycclj rmcl their. riches shnll not be 

nf.f(!ctcd by Section ~0 of the Act: 01: hy thi.s nc:rcomtt1t:. 
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IX. :£!;ANSFP.JL9.L].~.9JlSS llP.VE~.lll'!Ji. 

Scc.tiOI''I.. n or the Act pr.ov:tdc.:-; that nt t:hc end of: C!O:ICh 

:Ciscnl year that pot4 t~.on of the Snn Prnnc5.sco Harbor 1:cvcnucs i!t 

cxccoc of $250,000 rcnwininz after ncccss~ry opcrntit'lZ co::;ts .:mt1 

cxpc~nt15.turc:-: d:iJ~ccCly rcl:ttcd to the opcr<:1tion Of the m.:n:itimc 

ac~:i.v1.ty or 'the Por.t ot~ the mn:tntcH·,.nncc of non-mm::ttim':! o.ct5.v:i.ticr. 

of t:hc tlrn;l.lm: h;wc been mntlc slwlJ, be deemed c:x.ccss rcvcn~1c; 

proviclcd th[lt any fundr:; ~iopor.it:cd in ~ rcscl:vc fund !or f.uturc 

c.:1pitnl C>;l"lCncl:tturcs or. rmy fundt. used to rct..J.rc gcncrnl 

obliznt:ion en: revenue bonc1 ir.::a1cG slwll not be deemed C>:ccss 

rcv~.tu~. Capi.t:.t~l improvctw~rtt:s for non-mr.r:ltiht~ :~c:t:i.v5.tict; m.":\y be: 

consi.c1cr~d n::: expcncl:i.turcs for the purpose or dct:crm5.nil1C net 

revenue~ i.! ChC!)• h.:tvc:: the pr.:i.or nuthol::i.:t.nt:i.on of the D.:!p:tl"tm~nt of: 

Fin~ncC!. 

Capitctl improvcm::!nts nuthori~cd lmc~cr tb~ prov:i.sions of 

Sections 3 ~md 5 of the Act .and Pnr.t: V of the n.erccmant shall be 

dcC!mccl c:x.pcmliturcr. for the purponcs of clctcrming net revenue:::. 

Procedures fo'l.· .nuthot•:f.:.::ntion shnll be ~s spcd.f:Lccl in Scct:i.Ot'l 7 of 

the J\ct) except t:h.o.t for the purposes of th~ Act~ in the in~tnncc 

of non .. mar:i.t:~m~ nct:i.vity DS dcftnc(l in P.1r.t IX of this ncrcc·~;u:mt 

~1hcrc .n capital cxpcncl1.turc :r.s for n sum lcf!s thnn $250,000, the 

Dcpnrtmcnt of r~in.::mcc nncl tl1c HLJ.rbor Com:nission m~y r~grcc upon ~ 

procedure lor obtt~ininc the npprow1l r.s rccp.lirccl by Section 8 of 

the Ace. 

With rcl:lpcct to those provision:; o! Section 8 whl.ch 

nflcet the allocation of certain c>:pond1,tl.ll"C~ for the 

dc.tcrmin~tion of excess revenues. ns folloHs: 

J.. Opcr.:tting costs nnd cxpcnclJ.turc!; directly related to 

opc'l."ation of: the roaritimc activity of: the Port:; :mcl 

2. Mn:i.ntcnnncc of non .. marit:i.mc ::~ct:i.vitics of the 

"mnrit5.me: nctivity11 : 

29. 

.. 

.. 

. ~. 

i ,• 
' I 
' j 

j. 
1: ,. 
I' ·I 
I 

i 
I 
' 

..,J 
I 

-------~--

:-,I 
' . ·· .. ~·-· 

• I 

M. 



.• 

• 
"' .-·-·-

eod~308 ~.i~r 717 

All con!ltruction, reconstruction, improvement, rcp::Ji1~, 

mn.intcnnncc, O!>Cl':ll;:i.ol"l, ncql.tisition1 promotion ;md prot:c•ction of. 

:my prop(•rty, fnc:i.l:i.ty or ~1<'l"Vicc, 

(:1) which pr,wldcs for, or is ncccr.rw.r.y, :i.nd.dcnl·n] 

or :lUXili."l'ry t:o the intC'l:'c:hnnt;c o£ ~oods, p::oduct:; 01.' 

pc:.•r::ont~, l>e·tvcC'n land or ,.;r:l.tcl;' or lnnd-bnsc•d or w:ltcr 

carJ:iC>r:-;, or .:1ny combin:Jt:i.on t]lC!rc-of; or 

(b) "''h:l.ch prClvtdc.•r. for) or 1.r. nt'.CL·nr.nr.y, inc5.dcntnl 

or :,u):1.linry to the bcrthine, ,,cr.omnlod~ttion, rop:tir, 

con:.ltr~tctltm 01.' C'(!tJi.p;m·nt or vtor.~;.:·J.~ oJ· othor LaciLi.tiCH.i 

u:=;('J in co;·uwcti.nn \·l:l.th C'Onuu~·rcr.· 01" wnL<'r nct:i.vi.t;i,c:,1, 

Non-lll:a·:i.L:i,ttu• ~1ct:i.vitle5 on th!.! trnnr.fC'r:rcd l:mtln shr!ll. 

in(') ltdc· th<..~ foll md.n~: 

p,,rk:;, pltrYt~J..·otnl.d}:, puhJ :i.e Nlucr:t:J.onnl .1nd 

rccr~;.';tl;,<'nnl. fnd.l.it:il'S, nnJ :tl.l 1.-,•arlu~. builcltngo, 

fne J.l it i<·s, ~: t r~u: i.lt J.'<"s nncl t~ppl L~!lC'C'!'l r.~~~cr.! in connc·ct ~.on 

thCl:t.'\o.':i th, 

Any ur.c: \\1hich is not covc.·rccl r.mclC'r the:· forcr;ni11~ 

dc:Citl'ttloJ'I. of mnrlUmC' .1ctiv.i.1:y or non··w:~ritim<.· nct:tv:i.ty l>hnll. 

bC' r.ubject to furthc1: ::,crc:e>mcnt bct\·Ncn the Po.·t Corrmir.~1.cm :Hid 

the· IHn.~ctor of li'in.:1ncc. 

opc.•r,"U.ng costs :md l.'x.pcnditurc~• :tncur:r.cd dur:i.nr. the> 

previous fiscvl year rcl.:1tc•d to the operation of the 

mnrit:!Jn!' nclivlty, 

(b) l~xpcnr.l ..... n ttmot.mt:1 nccN':f;,., 1~y for the 

mnint:c&vmcc of t'lOI'l-111.1r:i.t:i.m:o nctiv:'.tica :f.t'lcm:rl•d for th(' 

previous fh:c~1.l YNlr. 

(c) 0:.:-posit .1ny fund£~ thnt may be! rcquirt'!cl to 

retire ~<'L'lcral ohlic,ntion or rc•vcnuc bond :f.s:::ucs, 

inC'lud'l.nt. :my rcsc'l.-vcr. Hhich 111ny l:c rcqu.ired to be r."t 
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up uudcor tht~ gcncrnl obli~ntj.on or r(.wcnuc bond is;.uc~r:. 

(d) Set. up n rct:('l."VC' f:uncl f()t future>: c:Jp;i.ttll cxpc·ndltur-<~~~ 

for mot•it1.m(• o1ct:i.vitl.cs S.f such imtlrovc~lnentr. h:lVt• tlH· pJ:-icn: 

nuthori:.~iltion of t;\1(' DcpnrtmC'nt of PintJncc nnd if: the- dct:.ih~ 

and tcr.m!i of rcsct·\•es hnvl?: been ncrccd to hy the DcpnrtJnr:~nt 

of J<"innncc. 

(C') Set up :t rc·~H:•rvc fund. !or cnpitill improvc:uic:ntn 

for non-mm::i.t:ime nctivl.tiC't:: if r.uch improvcmc>nts hnvc" 

the prior nutho:r:i:>:."'lt:io•• ·oE the l)~~r:n:tmcnt of F:i.n.1ncc. 

(f) Set up .n c.nr.h rN:~rv'~ ll~~\llnnt clc·p~cc~.nt:i.on 

sufficient £01; rcplnccm~nt or pcrr.onnl property or 

stl'LI.::tut·cc rcquirNl to cnrry out the purposes of the Act 

if t\J(' dctrdls Di1d tCl.ill~ Of l.'C':>C~l"VC!:1 ]1.'JVC bi;'Cn nr;rC'Cd to 

by thr: Oc:pnrtmc-nt of Finnncc, 

Excc~s r~vQr.~tc: then rcJll.1:i.ning OV('t' $7.50,000 &h:tlJ. I>C! 

divided SS pc~r CCI'I.t to ti.c Stntc Ccnc1.·nl PU1'1.d :~ncl 15 per cent to 

the Cit:y to be dcpositr~d in the H:1rbor Trur.t r:uncl .nnd ur::cd £or 

purpo:1r:::; :mthorlzccl by Section!~ 3 :md 5 of: the Act, 

3L. 
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X. PROVIStO~S 1-'0it DlVHS'l'I'fUI{g 

ScctiO!) 22 or tho 1\.ct provlt.k·s £or the }."CVCt"ti:lon of t:hr~ 

l:u'ld!: t:rnnr;f(!rrcd under tht' Act. 
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Xl, PrrO'J'EC'l'J.ON 01' BX'!S'l'rt'r. USlo~~ 

Most of the prc{:cnt t.1SCJ~s of the trnt'lsfcrl~N1 lar.c.lr. 

wore not PC'-"11t:i.ttcd 1:~ have lc~~sc~s t.tndcn: ct1c cxi~t:i.ne law zovcrn­

ing the opcrnt::i.on of the t:cnn~fC'rrcd lnndG. Under llnrbor.r. onc1 

Nnv:i.~nt1.on Code Scct~.or1 30:>3 pcr.oitt:cd \H.iCS or: pX'Opcxoty t~!.!X'C 

tm•m:i.nC'.blc by the- Authority on 30 (lays pt"CV5.ous not:i.ec to t:hc 

pcr.!iOl'l un:blE'; the propct•t:y, !t has not: bNm the pr.:!ct:i.cc of tho 

St:tl:c t.C'I tc~:m:i.n.:tl'c these usca \ll:i.thout l'L'.1SOna"t)lc c~ur.c. Hhcn 

tlw City t~ll;c•G the! tt•t.msfcJ:rcci lmic.l!i the C5.t:y !i~1n1J. ll'~kc CVC!ry 

C[l:Oi:'t: to prov:i.~C pt"C!:C:nt \lCCl."$ Of the pt'Opct't)' \d.th COntimlcC: 

occupnncy \.mclcr f~Sl:' tc1:nu:: ~ml cond~.t.:ions mHl t·1:tti1out t~nf..n~.r 

nc.1v:m tncc or ctiscrir.:il't:tt1.o:-t. 

This ~ercC!m::mt ir. in itself m1 express conc.1it~on of 

tl;'nns!cr under Scct:i.on 9 of the Act nnc.l n term of the tr~nsf'C!r 

\mc.lc'l::' Scct~.on ll1 of the Act. 

This aerctli,cr,t uhall be binding on the CS.ty ancl the 

PcpaX'tt~~cmt of Finance: \mlcss or until the p:.lrtl.es t~1ncncl this 

.nr;rccmcmt i11 \•Tri t1 ne. bct:\l"ccn the p.:lt•tic-s h~rc: t.o. 

In th7 event, hoNe>vcr, that the Lcgiola.t:urC! llmcndr., 

mod:tfics or rcvol~cs th~ Act, a.s provided in Scct~.on l.8 thereof, 

to- the extent ~\tch action of the 14cz,islnturc is not in conformity 

with tM.s agrccmcmc, chi:; as;rccr:lcnt t'llll 'be dccn1~d amcnclccl, 

moc.U!icd or rcvo!:.cd th!!1~cby in ::ccol."(kmcc-. ''lith tho action of the 
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Lct~:i.slnturC'. ln thnt: CVC!nt: the p:n:t.:ict; 
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6/24/2019 Find San Francisco Parking | Impark Lot Map Search

https://lots.impark.com/IMP/en?latlng=37.7785189,-122.4056395&zoom=16#details=27,26 1/2

Daily: $17.00 expires at

midnight daily

Evening/Weekend: $10.00 (Evening rate

begins after 5 p.m.)

Event: $25.00-$40 Flat

Rate on Event Days

Daily Rate

Random Unlimited New: $315.00

Monthly Rate

Bayside Lot - Lot #26
1 Bryant Street,
San Francisco CA 94105

  

This large clean surface lot is located on the southwest corner of The
Embarcadero and Bryant Street; near Piers 30 and 32 and the heart of the
Financial District.
 
The lot is conveniently close to the Muni train transfer to F Line and Bart with
easy access to and from the Bay Bridge. The Ferry Building is 3 blocks away
and AT&T Park is within walking distance.
 

Daily rate payment options:

In the case of a discrepancy between the rates shown here and
those displayed at the lot, the rates at the lot shall prevail.

Reviews
Read All Reviews
(https://maps.google.com/?
cid=3193831421702550825)



6/24/2019 Find San Francisco Parking | Impark Lot Map Search

https://lots.impark.com/IMP/en?latlng=37.7785189,-122.4056395&zoom=16#details=27,26 2/2

Number Of Spaces 289

Lot Number 26

Lot Type urfaced Paved

Restrictions No Re triction

Entrance outh O� Bryant Between Main And Beale

Exit North Onto Bryant treet

Lot Details



Re: Seawall 330/Pier 30-32 - Car Counts 

Benson, Brad (PRT} 
Fri 1/18/2019 6:16 PM 

To: Lozovoy, Mark (PRT) <mark.ICEovoy@sfport.com> 
Cc: Martin, Michael (PRT) <michael.matin@sfport.com> 

Thank you for your help with this, Mark. 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Jan 18, 2019, at 4:43PM, Lozovoy, Mark (PRT) <mark.lozovoy_@sfgort.com> wrote: 

Hey guys - here you go! ML 

From: Joe Braucher [mailto:JBraucher@imRark.com] 
Sent: Friday, January 18, 2019 4:23PM 
To: Lozovoy, Mark (PRT) 
Cc: Edgar Castaneda 
Subject: Seawall 330/Pier 30-32- Car Counts 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted 
sources. 

Hi Mark, 

Just got your VM regarding car counts. See below: 

Seawall 330- Average Car Count- 200 cars 
Pier 30/32- Average Car Count- 500 cars 

Let me know if you have any questions or if you need any additional information. Thanks! 

Joe Braucher MBA. cPP 

Director of Account Management, San Francisco 

<imageOO 1. p..n~ <image002.p..n~ 
1740 Cesar Chavez Street, Suite 
2W 
San Francisco, CA 94124 
P. 415.813.4280 

Port CCSF 043695 



From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Stevenson, David (POL) <david.c.stevenson@sfgov.org> 
Tuesday, April2, 2019 1:24PM 

Lynch, Andy (MYR) <andy.lynch@sfgov.org> 
Fw: Navigation Centers request for information 

Attach: RFI Coversheet Navigation Centers.pdf; Part 1 Crimes- Navigation Centers (1-8th mile 
perimeter).pptx; Part 2 and Other Incidents- Navigation Center (1-8th mile 
Perimeter).xlsx 

FYI. 

David Stevenson 

Director of Strategic Communications 

San Francisco Police Department 

1245 3rd Street, 6th Floor 

San Francisco, CA 94158 

(415)837-7242 Desk 

(415)307-6524 Cell 

(415)575-6083 Fax 

From: Cunningham, Jason (POL) 
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2019 12:30 PM 
To: Hussey, Deirdre (POL) 
Cc: Stevenson, David (POL); McGuire, Catherine (POL) 

Subject: FW: Navigation Centers request for information 

FYI re: navigation centers. 

v/r 

Jason Cunningham 
Program Manager 
Professional Standards & Principled Policing Bureau 
San Francisco Police Department 
(415) 837-7130 

From: Kwait, Lee (POL) 
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2019 12:18 PM 
To: Cherniss, Jason (POL) <Jason.Cherniss@sfgov.org>; Lazar, David (POL) <David.Lazar@sfgov.org> 
Cc: Lam, Terry (POL) <terry.lam@sfgov.org>; Cunningham, Jason (POL) <jason.cunningham@sfgov.org>; Chisholm, 
Jeanne (POL) <jeanne.chisholm@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Navigation Centers request for information 

Hello, 

Attached please find requested statistics for the Navigation Centers, and proposed site at Embarcadero & 
Bryant. 

Mayor CCSF 055001 



Regards, 

Lee Ann Kwait, Senior Analyst 
San Francisco Police Department 
Professional Standards and Principled Policing 
Business Analysis Team 
1245 3rd St., 6th Floor 
(415) 575-5894 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication and its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged information. 
It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate 
applicable laws, including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender 
and destroy all copies of the communication. 

Mayor CCSF 055002 



San Francisco Police Department 
Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit 

Response to Request for Information 

Requestor: Commander David Lazar, Community Engagement Division 

Date of Request: April 2, 2019 

Request: Crime statistics before and after opening of four Navigation Centers, within 1/8 mile buffer, as 
well as statistics within 1/8 mile of proposed site for new Navigation Center 

Response: 

Part 1 Crime incidents from Crime Data Warehouse were mapped to determine those falling within 1/8 

of a mile of the parcels for four Navigation Centers, located at the following addresses: 224 South Van 

Ness Ave, 125 Bayshore Blvd, 680 Bryant St, 600 25th St. The results are aggregated in the following 

tables. 

Bayshore Navigation Center 

Division Circle Navigation Center 

Central Waterfront Navigation Center 

5/18 

8/3/18 

5/24/17 

31 

178 

12 

35 

152 

8 

13% 

-15% 

-33% 

A breakdown by month and maps indicating the area searched are provided in PowerPoint format. An 
additional PowerPoint slide depicts crime statistics in the area of the proposed Navigation Center near 
the intersection of Bryant St & The Embarcadero. 

An Excel file is also included, which provides a monthly breakdown of Part II and other incident counts 
for each location. 

Data Source: San Francisco Police Department Crime Data Warehouse via Business Intelligence Tools 

Date Prepared: April 2, 2019 

4/2/2019 

Mayor CCSF 055003 



1/Sth Mile radius of Central Waterfront Navigation Center 
600 25th Street, Opened on May 24, 2017 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, November 1, 2016 to March 31, 2019 
l1C:R part 1 Cat¢g()ry 

c~ntral Watel'frotlt l\l<lvigatiilri C:etlte 
Opened Date: 5/24/2017 

HOMICIDE 

2016 

6 Months Prior to Opening 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2017 

6 Months after Opening 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2018 

0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2019 

0 0 0 0 0 

RAPE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ROBBERY 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 2 1 0 1 0 0 2 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 

ASSAULT 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 0 

BURGLARY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

LARCENY THEFT 1 3 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 1 1 0 1 1 0 3 0 1 1 1 1 1 3 1 2 0 2 0 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 0 2 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 2 1 0 0 1 2 0 1 1 0 0 

A~ON 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total 2 5 1 1 1 2 1 1 0 2 3 2 0 5 3 3 4 3 4 2 4 3 3 8 2 3 1 3 0 
~~~~------------------~~~~--~~~~ 

:·· 

Central Waterfront 

Parks 

c= Federai_Land 

90 180 ' 1-Feet 

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 
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1/Sth Mile radius of Bayshore Navigation Center 
125 Bayshore Blvd, Opened in May, 2018 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, November 1, 2017 to March 31, 2019 

Opened Date: 5/2018 

HOMICIDE 

RAPE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ROBBERY 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 

ASSAULT 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 

BURGLARY 2 0 0 0 0 3 2 1 

LARCENY THEFT 3 0 0 2 1 4 2 0 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 2 1 3 0 3 2 3 3 

ARSON 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total 8 4 

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 

0 

0 

1 

1 

3 

2 

0 

7 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 3 0 0 2 1 

0 1 0 2 1 0 

5 0 4 1 2 2 

2 1 4 1 2 3 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

7 5 8 4 7 6 

r··········~~ 1 /8th Mile of Parcel 
·=·······················: 

Bayshore Navigation Center 

Arterial Street 

Water 

Parks 

[mnnml Federai_Land 

100 200 

Feet 

0 0 

0 0 

0 1 

4 0 

1 3 

3 1 

0 0 

8 5 

1.{) 
0 
0 
1.{) 
1.{) 
0 
LL 
(f) 

u 
u 



1/8th Mile radius of Division Circle Navigation Center 
224 South Van Ness Ave, Opened on August 3, 2018 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, February 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 

()pened[)ate:_8/3/201~ ................................•..... 61VJonths Prior to ()penin~·-··························· ...... ~ IVJ()Ilthse~ft~r()p~llill~ .. . 
HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

RAPE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ROBBERY 1 0 0 0 1 2 0 

ASSAULT 5 2 2 0 2 6 0 

BURGLARY 2 3 1 2 0 0 0 

LARCENY THEFT • 35 18 19 24 25 19 20 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 1 1 1 0 5 1 0 

ARSON 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total • 44 24 23 26 33 28 20 

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 

0 

1 

6 

2 

15 

0 

0 

24 

.. 

.. 

;-· 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 2 0 1 

2 3 3 1 1 

1 1 0 1 1 

24 20 26 16 14 

0 3 3 0 5 

0 0 0 0 0 

27 27 34 18 22 

: . :.:. ; . ~ .. ' 

Division Circle Nav Ctr 

············ Arterial Street 

Water 

Parks 

c::::::J Federai_Land 

100 200 ' + Feet 

0 

1 

4 

1 

15 

1 

0 

22 

<D 
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1/8th Mile radius of Bryant Street Navigation Center 
680 Bryant Street, Opened on January 9, 2019 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, July 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 

UCR Part I Category 

Bryant Street Navigation Center 

Opened Date: 1/9/2019 

HOMICIDE 

RAPE 

ROBBERY 

ASSAULT 

BURGLARY 

LARCENY THEFT 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 

ARSON 

Grand Total 

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 

2018 2019 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec ~~g F~~ IVJar 

6 Months Prior to Opening ) 2 Months 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 4 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 

9 2 5 8 4 8 5 4 8 

4 4 2 2 0 5 1 0 2 

26 18 21 24 12 10 14 13 17 

4 7 1 6 4 2 1 7 1 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

43 35 30 40 21 25 22 25 28 

Bayshore Navigation Center 

Federai_Land 

165 330 

Feet 

r--
0 
0 
1.{) 
1.{) 
0 
LL 
(f) 

u 
u 



1/Sth Mile radius of Seawall Lot 300 
Proposed Navigation Center 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, January 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 

RAPE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ROBBERY 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ASSAULT 2 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 

BURGLARY 0 0 0 1 0 3 1 0 

LARCENY THEFT 7 8 1 5 3 6 8 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 0 0 0 0 1 0 5 4 

ARSON 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total 8 8 3 6 6 13 13 

a~ 
~e:, 

«'-.:.,, __ __.~;-'~-

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 

0 0 

0 0 

2 0 

3 4 

9 9 

0 0 

0 1 

14 14 

0 0 0 0 

1 0 0 2 

1 0 1 0 

0 0 2 1 

7 7 3 5 

2 1 0 2 

0 0 1 0 

11 8 7 10 

1/8th Miles of Parcel 

Seawall Lot Parcel 

buffer 

Nav center parcel 

Water 

Parks 

Federal_ land 

125 250 

Fee-l 

0 

1 

0 

0 

8 

2 

0 

11 

CX) 
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1.{) 
1.{) 
0 
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This record has been produced in a native format 

Mayor CCSF 055009 



From: 

Sent: 

Stevenson, David (POL) <david.c.stevenson@sfgov.org> 

Wednesday, April 3, 2019 11:05 AM 

To: 

Subject: 

Lynch, Andy (MYR) <andy.lynch@sfgov.org> 

Re: Navigation Centers request for information 

Attach: Part 1 Crimes- Navigation Centers (1-4th mile perimeter).pptx; Part 2 and Other 
incidents (1quartermile).xlsx; RFI Coversheet Navigation Centers 1-4th mile.pdf 

Andy, please see updated attached documents. 

David Stevenson 

Director of Strategic Communications 

San Francisco Police Department 

1245 3rd Street, 6th Floor 

San Francisco, CA 94158 

(415)837-7242 Desk 

(415)307-6524 Cell 

(415)575-6083 Fax 

From: Stevenson, David (POL) 
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2019 1:23:56 PM 
To: Lynch, Andy (MYR) 
Subject: Fw: Navigation Centers request for information 

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

Mayor CCSF 055010 



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

Mayor CCSF 055011 



1/4th Mile radius of Central Waterfront Navigation Center 
600 25th Street, Opened on May 24, 2017 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, November 1, 2016 to March 31, 2019 

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 

1/4 mile of Parcel 

Central Waterfront 

•··············· Arterial Street 

Water 

Parks 

0 2125 425 

Fee! 
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1.{) 
1.{) 
0 
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(f) 

u 
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1/4th Mile radius of Bayshore Navigation Center 
125 Bayshore Blvd, Opened in October, 2018 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, November 1, 2017 to March 31, 2019 

RAPE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ROBBERY 1 2 2 0 5 1 1 0 1 0 2 

ASSAULT 3 3 2 2 3 4 1 4 4 1 5 

BURGLARY 3 3 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 4 1 

LARCENY THEFT 10 11 5 8 11 5 6 5 5 9 8 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 4 3 6 3 5 5 5 4 7 12 4 

ARSON 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total 22 22 16 14 26 15 14 18 26 20 

'·' 

....... 

\~·· ... 
~ 
'% 

\f. 
··.,::·:.::· 

212.5 425 

Feet 

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 
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1/4th Mile radius of Division Circle Navigation Center 
224 South Van Ness Ave, Opened on August 3, 2018 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, February 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 
UCR Part I Category 2018 2019 

l:)i\(i~i(:)J'1C:ir'fi~I\J~ig~~i(:)I'1C:~Il~~t F~~ 1\11~~ Allt 00~ )@ Jt.ll iti~ sep oct•••••Nov•••••nec:••••••Jal'l Feb Mar 
()penedpate:.8/3/201~ .................................•............ 6!\llonths.Priort().()penin~ ... ·····················································~·I\JI~~th~~~~~·~~~~i~~······· 
HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 

RAPE 0 1 0 0 0 0 

ROBBERY 13 4 7 8 9 8 

ASSAULT 14 16 11 13 14 18 

BURGLARY 3 9 11 13 12 5 

LARCENY THEFT 93 89 81 101 101 100 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 4 2 10 4 10 5 

ARSON 0 1 2 1 0 0 

Grand Total 127 122 122 140 146 136 •• 

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 

0 0 0 

5 7 4 

9 15 17 

12 8 11 

83 87 94 

2 9 6 

0 0 0 

111 • 127 132 
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0 7 3 

13 17 12 

4 7 7 

92 92 80 

6 11 6 

0 0 0 

115 136 108 

Division Nav Ctr 

212.5 425 

Feet 
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1/4th Mile radius of Bryant Street Navigation Center 
680 Bryant Street, Opened on January 9, 2019 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, July 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 
UCR Part I Category 2018 2019 

Bryant Street Navigation Center Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec • Jan • Feb Mar 

Opened Date: 1/9/2019 6 Months Prior to Opening 2Months 

HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

RAPE 2 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 

ROBBERY 2 7 2 1 6 4 3 3 1 

ASSAULT 19 12 12 18 12 15 14 11 12 

BURGLARY 9 10 12 14 12 11 7 9 11 

LARCENY THEFT 87 57 84 75 59 50 50 62 42 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 7 12 7 13 12 8 8 7 4 

ARSON 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Grand Total 126 98 119 121 101 88 83 92 71 

... ... ···· 
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Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 
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1/4th Mile radius of Seawall Lot 300 
Proposed Navigation Center 

UCR PART I Crime Statistics, January 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 

RAPE 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ROBBERY 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 2 1 0 

ASSAULT 1 1 1 2 3 3 3 0 2 2 1 2 1 1 

BURGLARY 0 2 1 4 5 3 6 4 8 4 1 3 2 1 

LARCENY THEFT 31 14 17 24 24 37 33 39 36 37 30 21 19 13 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 1 0 3 1 6 5 2 3 4 3 4 2 4 2 

ARSON 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Grand Total 33 17 23 33 39 48 44 48 51 46 38 30 27 17 
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1/4th miles of Parcel 
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Water 
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Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 
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This record has been produced in a native format 

Mayor CCSF 055017 



San Francisco Police Department 
Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit 

Response to Request for Information 

Requestor: David Stevenson, Director of Strategic Communications 

Date of Request: April 2, 2019 

Request: Crime statistics before and after opening of four Navigation Centers, within 1/4 mile buffer, as 
well as statistics within 1/4 mile of proposed site for new Navigation Center 

Response: 

Part 1 Crime incidents from Crime Data Warehouse were mapped to determine those falling within 1/4 

of a mile of the parcels for four Navigation Centers, located at the following addresses: 224 South Van 

Ness Ave, 125 Bayshore Blvd, 680 Bryant St, 600 25th St. The results are aggregated in the following 

tables. 

A breakdown by month, and maps indicating the area searched, are provided in PowerPoint format. An 
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

Date Prepared: April 3, 2019 

4/3/2019 

Mayor CCSF 055018 



From: 

Sent: 

Stevenson, David (POL) <david.c.stevenson@sfgov.org> 

Wednesday, April3, 2019 2:00PM 

To: 

Subject: 

Lynch, Andy (MYR) <andy.lynch@sfgov.org> 

Updated 

Attach: RE_N avigation _Centers _request_for _information UPDATED .zip 

David Stevenson 
Director of Strategic Communications 

San Francisco Police Department 
1245 3rd Street, 6th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94158 
(415)837-7242 Desk 
(415)307-6524 Cell 
(415)575-6083 Fax 

Mayor CCSF 055019 



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

UCR Part I Category 2.018 2.019 

l:)i\(i~i(?J'1N~\fig~ic:lJ'1~¢1'1~¢l f¢1? 1\11~1' l:\1?( l\ll~'t' ll.ll'l JIJI Atig set? oct•••••Nov•••••oec:••••••Jafl Feb Mar 

()penedl:)ate:.S/3/2.01~ .....................•............. 61\1Jollths Prior to ()penin~ ... ·····················································~ l\ll~~th~~ft~~ t:}p~~i~~······ 
HOMICIDE 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

RAPE 0 0 2 0 1 0 

ROBBERY 6 1 6 2 2 3 

ASSAULT 21 19 15 14 18 17 

BURGLARY 3 5 11 13 15 8 

LARCENY THEFT 59 64 66 65 56 75 

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 8 13 10 13 13 16 

ARSON 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total 97 102. 110 108 106 119 • 

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
1/'<f 

1/4th miles of Parcel 

Seawall Lot Parcel 

· .............. Arterial Street 

Water 

Parks 

0 212.5 425 

Feet 

Prepared by: SFPD Professional Standards and Principled Policing Unit on April2, 2019 

0 

1 

4 

2 

30 

3 

0 

40 

'<j" 
N 
0 
1.{) 
1.{) 
0 
LL 
(f) 

u 
u 

...... 
0 
>. 
co 
~ 



This record has been produced in a native format 

Mayor CCSF 055025 



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

Mayor CCSF 055026 



From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 
Attach: 

Stevenson, David (POL) <david.c.stevenson@sfgov.org> 

Wednesday, April3, 2019 3:24PM 

Lynch, Andy (MYR) <andy.lynch@sfgov.org> 

Re: Updated 

Part 1 Crimes- Navigation Centers (1-4th mile perimeter).pptx; Part 2 and Other 
incidents (1quartermile).xlsx; RFI Coversheet Navigation Centers 1-4th mile.pdf 

Final version, I hope. Please use this one going forward- Crime Analysis indicates the previous version had an 

error in the Homicide statistics for the Division Circle site. Thanks. 

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
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2019 2:00:13 PM 
To: Lynch, Andy (MYR) 
Subject: Updated 

David Stevenson 

Director of Strategic Communications 

San Francisco Police Department 

1245 3rd Street, 6th Floor 

San Francisco, CA 94158 
(415)837-7242 Desk 

(415)307-6524 Cell 

(415)575-6083 Fax 

Mayor CCSF 055027 



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

l:)i\(i~i(?J'11\1~ig~igl) <;¢1'1~¢~ f¢~ 1\11~~ API' M~v A@ Jl.ll n A.ti~ Sep oa:•••••No\1•••• oec:••••••Jal1 Feb Mar 
Opened Date: 8/3/2018 6Months Prior to Opening G~~~t~~ ~~~~gp~~i~g 
HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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

Mayor CCSF 055033 



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

Mayor CCSF 055034 



5th	&	Bryant,	April	20,	2019	(photo	taken	by	Judy	Lin)		



5th	&	Bryant,	April	20,	2019	(photo	taken	by	Judy	Lin)		



Harrison	Street	near	K&L	Wine,	one	block	from	5th	&	Bryant,	April	20,	2019	(photo	
taken	by	Judy	Lin)		



5th	&	Bryant,		April	7,	2019	(Photo	from	Twitter)		



Division Circle, April 4, 2019 {photo taken by Judy Lin} 



Division	Circle,		April	7,	2019	(Photo	from	Twitter)		



 

25th Street at Illinois (Central Waterfront Navigation Center), March 9, 2019 (photo taken by Wallace Lee) 



 

Illinois at 25th Street (Central Waterfront Navigation Center), March 21, 2019 (photo taken by Wallace Lee) 



 

Division Circle Navigation Center, March 10, 2019 (photo taken by Wallace Lee) 



 

 

 

Division Circle Navigation Center, April 20, 2019 (photo taken by Wallace Lee) 



 

Bryant Navigation Center, March 10, 2019 (photo taken by Wallace Lee) 

 

 



 

Bryant Navigation Center (close-up), March 10, 2019 (photo taken by Wallace Lee) 
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Wong, Jocelyn (BOS)

From: Board of Supervisors,  (BOS)
Sent: Monday, June 24, 2019 5:07 PM
To: BOS Legislation,  (BOS)
Subject: FW: Vote on Embarcadero Navigation Center

Categories: 190611

 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Melanie Scardina <scardinama@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Monday, June 24, 2019 5:00 PM 
To: Board of Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS] 
<mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Stefani, Catherine (BOS) <catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>; Walton, Shamann (BOS) 
<shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Mar, Gordon (BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Brown, Vallie (BOS) 
<vallie.brown@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS) <matt.haney@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary <hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>; 
Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha (BOS) <ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Yee, Norman (BOS) 
<norman.yee@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Vote on Embarcadero Navigation Center 
 
 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 
 
 
 
Dear Supervisors 
 
Please vote “No" on the Embarcadero Navigation Center tomorrow.  While I understand there is pressure to add shelter 
beds, I don’t agree that a navigation center is appropriate in our tourist areas.  At least a third of our homeless 
population suffers from drug or alcohol addiction.  Drug and alcohol use is not permitted inside the shelters, so they 
hang out in the adjacent neighborhoods to feed their addictions, to panhandle or commit petty crimes to get money for 
drugs.   The newly revitalized Embarcadero is truly a jewel in our city.  Adding a navigation center in this particular 
location will further tarnish our city’s image and impact tourist dollars.  A better location would be Cow Palace or 
Candlestick Point, where there would be lesser impact on tourism and residential areas.  Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 
Thank you 
M. Scardina 
 


